
 
 

Cotswold District Council, Trinity Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 1PX 

Tel: 01285 623000 www.cotswold.gov.uk 

 

 

 

2 April 2024 

Tel: 01285 623208 or 623210 

e-mail: democratic@cotswold.gov.uk 

 

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
A meeting of the Planning and Licensing Committee will be held in the Council Chamber - Council 

Offices, Trinity Road, Cirencester, GL7 1PX on Wednesday, 10 April 2024 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
 

Rob Weaver 

Chief Executive 

 

 

To: Members of the Planning and Licensing Committee 

(Councillors Ray Brassington, Patrick Coleman, Dilys Neill, Michael Vann, Mark Harris, Ian Watson,  

Gary Selwyn, Julia Judd, David Fowles, Daryl Corps and Andrew Maclean) 

 
Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. 

 
As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Committee Administrator know prior to the date of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.cotswold.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  

To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

The quorum for the Planning and Licensing Committee is 3 members. 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

To note details of any substitution arrangements in place for the Meeting. 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations of interest from Members and Officers, relating to 

items to be considered at the meeting. 

 

4.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 14) 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 13 March 2024. 

 

5.   Chair's Announcements (if any)  

 

6.   Public questions  

A maximum of 15 minutes is allocated for an “open forum” of public questions at 

committee meetings. No person may ask more than two questions (including 

supplementary questions) and no more than two such questions may be asked on behalf 

of one organisation. The maximum length of oral questions or supplementary questions 

by the public will be two minutes. Questions must relate to the responsibilities of the 

Committee but questions in this section cannot relate to applications for determination 

at the meeting. 
 

The response may take the form of: 

a) A direct oral response (maximum length: 2 minutes); 

b) Where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other 

published work, a reference to that publication; or 

c) Where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer circulated 

later to the questioner. 

 

7.   Member questions  

A maximum period of fifteen minutes is allowed for Member questions. Questions must 

be directed to the Chair and must relate to the remit of the committee but may not 

relate to applications for determination at the meeting.  

 

Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received, except that the Chair 

may group together similar questions.  

 

The deadline for submitting questions is 5.00pm on the working day before the day of 

the meeting unless the Chair agrees that the question relates to an urgent matter, in 

which case the deadline is 9.30am on the day of the meeting.  

 

A member may submit no more than two questions. At the meeting the member may 

ask a supplementary question arising directly from the original question or the reply. The 

Page 2



 

maximum length of a supplementary question is one minute.  

 

The response to a question or supplementary question may take the form of: 

a) A direct oral response (maximum length: 2 minutes); 

b) Where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other 

published work, a reference to that publication; or 

c) Where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer circulated 

later to the questioner. 

 

Schedule of Applications  

 

 

To consider and determine the applications contained within the enclosed schedule: 

8.   22/04163/FUL- The Feathered Nest Inn, Nether Westcote, Chipping Norton, 

Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD (Pages 17 - 66) 

Summary 
Erection of eight units of overnight accommodation and associated works at the Feathered 

Nest Inn, Nether Westcote, Chipping Norton, Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD 

 

Case Officer 

Martin Perks 

 

Ward Member 

Councillor David Cunningham 

 

Recommendation: 

PERMIT 

 

9.   24/00055/PLP- Land South Of 1 - 3 Corner Houses, Driffield, Gloucestershire, GL7 5QA 

(Pages 67 - 78) 

Summary 

Permission in principle for the construction of 2 no. dwellings at Land South Of 1 - 3 

Corner Houses Driffield Gloucestershire GL7 5QA 

 

Case Officer 

Andrew Moody 

 

Ward Member 

Councillor Lisa Spivey 

 

Recommendation: 

Permit 

 

10.   Sites Inspection Briefing  

Members for 1 May 2024; 

 
Councillors Ray Brassington, Patrick Coleman, David Fowles, Andrew Maclean, Michael 

Vann 

 

11.   Licensing Sub-Committee  

Not required at present. 

 

Members next on the rota; Patrick Coleman (Chair), Julia Judd, Michael Vann 

Page 3



 

 

 

(END) 

Page 4



 

 
Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

 
 

 
Minutes of a meeting of Planning and Licensing Committee held on Wednesday, 13 March 

2024 

 

 

Councillors present: 

Ray Brassington – Chair     

Dilys Neill 

Michael Vann 

Mark Harris 

 

Ian Watson 

Gary Selwyn 

Julia Judd –Vice-Chair (acting) 

 

David Fowles 

Daryl Corps 

Andrew Maclean 

 

 

Officers present: 

 

Mark Fisher, Planning Case Officer 

Adrian Harding, Interim Development 

Management Manager 

 

Andrew Moody, Senior Planning Case Officer 

James Felton, Principal Solicitor 

Ana Prelici, Democratic Services Officer 

Kira Thompson, Elections and Democratic 

Services Support Assistant 

 

 

Observers: 

 

Councillor Juliet Layton 

 

55 Apologies  

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Patrick Coleman.  
 

56 Substitute Members  
 

There were no substitute members.  
 

57 Declarations of Interest  

 

Councillor Selwyn declared an interest in Agenda Item 8, as they sat on the Steadings 

Community Management Trust, and would abstain on the item.   
 

58 Minutes  

 

The minutes of the 7 February meeting were considered as presented in the pack.  
 

An amendment was made to item number 8 where it stated “11 holiday homes the number 

was believed to be in excess of this” 

 

RESOLVED: That the Planning and Licensing Committee APPROVE the minutes as a true and 

correct record.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

 

Voting record 

For 10, Against 0, Abstain 0, 1 Absent/ Did not vote 

 

For Against Abstain 

 Andrew Maclean   

 Daryl Corps   

 David Fowles   

 Dilys Neill   

 Gary Selwyn   

Ian Watson   

 Julia Judd   

 Mark Harris   

 Michael Vann   

 Ray Brassington   

 

59 Chair's Announcements (if any)  

 

 
There were no Chair’s announcements. 

 

60 Public questions  

 

There were two public speakers. 
 

David Hindle, introduced themselves as a resident of Tetbury, and asked the Committee; 
 

“It may be recalled that in early November 23, Committee resolved to grant planning 

permission for a new Healthcare Centre, and facilitating residential in Tetbury, subject to the 

completion of a Section 106 Agreement.  Most people in Tetbury and the surrounding area 

were thankful for that decision.  

 

All the matters to be in the Agreement were known. The applicant has not yet received even 

a first draft of the Legal Agreement from the Legal people acting on behalf of CDC, although 4 

months has passed.   The applicant, has just received, a first draft from Gloucestershire 

County Council, for matters that are the responsibility of GCC. 

 

1. Is the Chair aware of who within CDC monitors the progress from resolution, to signing a 

Legal Agreement? 

 

2. Will the Chair consider requesting Councillor Juliet Layton, as the appropriate Cabinet 

Member, to promote the introduction of new Key Performance Indicators for different 

complexities of Section 106 Agreements (3 or 4), setting target times for each level of 

complexity from resolution, to planning permission being issued,  % performance against 

each?” 

 

The Chair stated that a written response would be circulated from the Legal team.  

 

Bella Amory, who introduced themselves as a resident of the Chedworth and Churn Valley 

Ward  

 

Page 6



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

I am concerned about an application for Rendcomb Airfield. Various iterations of it have been 

with the Planning Department since 2021. Rendcomb Airfield was granted planning permission 

in 1990 for private use. Any notion of commercial activity was to be confined to aircraft 

storage with operations planned elsewhere. The current application is for 1,000 commercial 

wing-walking flights. The flights can be anywhere in class G airspace. Just this week, Councillor 

Michael Dentith of Chedworth Parish Council, who flew for Rendcomb Airfield, confirmed 

residents' worst fears that these flights can descend as low as 60 metres above the airfield and 

as low as 152 metres above our homes. The stress caused by this application keeps me and my 

neighbours awake at night. 

 

There have been nearly 100 objections, many of whom live adjacent to this site. The Civil 

Aviation Authority (CAA) has a statutory duty to promote aviation and Rendcomb got 

permission from the CAA to operate commercial wing-walking flights to the public in October 

2015. Rendcomb didn't also apply for planning permission from CDC, instead, in 2016 it 

started to operate unlawful commercial wing-walking flights. Enforcement notices from the 

Cotswold District Council followed suit. The current unlawful flights create a noise that is 

unbearable in the summer months. For locals who live nearby, the stress caused by the noise 

is oppressive. I have sought hypnotherapy, I have been told it won't work. You can't keep your 

window open nor be in the garden, and the applicant wants to fly five days a week during the 

day, including Saturdays on the nicest days of the year. 

in May 2021, a noise survey which monitored the unlawful flights was conducted by nearby 

residents in Rendcomb and in Chatsworth, and we recorded on average 60 decibels of noise 

pollution from the unlawful flight flights (Often it was more). the World Health Organisation 

states that 55 decibels causes a critical health effect. 

CDC has a statutory duty to follow the NPPF and the Local Plan. So my questions are; 
 

1) When are you going to follow the policies, the planning documents and reject the 

latest application, and  

2)  When are you going to enforce the current Section 106 agreement? 

 

The Chair stated that the application was due to come to Committee, but that a date had not 

yet been set. The Chair explained that an officer response would be provided. 

 

61 Member questions  

 

There were no Member Questions.  
 

62 22/02749/REM - Employment Land East of Spratsgate Lane, Cirencester  

 

The Planning Consultant introduced the site’s history and context. The application was for the 

approval of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the employment area to the east 

of Spratsgate Lane, Cirencester, Gloucestershire. 
 

Public Speakers 

 

James Hicks, the agent on the application addressed the committee. They stated that the 

applicant had been working with the Council to address concerns of the application, which 

included acoustic elements of the application. They also explained that the car parking 

provision met the requirements of Gloucestershire County Council. 

 

The Ward Member did not comment on the application.  

 

Page 7



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

Member Questions  

 

Members stated that the area was classed for employment use and asked what types of 

businesses would fall within this. The Planning Consultant explained that this would be use 

classes B2 (general industrial use) and B8 (storage or distribution) 

 

Members asked about uses such as tool stations, with a small outlet for the public, and how 

much of this retail use could be carried out without seeking planning provision. The Planning 

Consultant explained that there were established guidelines for when storage use became 

retail, but that this essentially required it to be ancillary use.  

 

Members discussed the parking issues. The Planning Consultant explained that the policy 

parameters around parking, and that the parking was maximum for B8, not B2. The parking 

required for what the Council deemed to be safe would be in excess of what would be fair on 

the applicant and cause increased damage to the environment. Therefore the condition of a 

TRO (traffic regulation order) was added in. Other mitigations included were increased cycle 

parking and a travel plan.   

 

The acoustics report was discussed. The Planning Consultant explained that the Council’s 

acoustics specialist stated that the applicant’s mitigation was insufficient, so this was included 

within the reserved matters of the application.  

 

Members asked the Planning Consultant how the unilateral undertaking related to the 

conditions with the report. The Planning Consultant explained that this related to financial 

contributions to the parking and the pedestrian link that the applicant had offered to build.  
 

Members asked whether all subsequent applications on the site would be considered by the 

Committee. The Planning Consultant stated that the scheme of delegation, which addressed 

such matters was being reconsidered by the Council at present. The reason the application 

was brought to the Committee was due to objections on the contentious parking and noise 

issues, and so it was deemed to bring the specific application to committee. 

 

Members also discussed the lighting aspects of the application. 

 

Member Comments 

 

Members welcomed the additional employment opportunities within the District but stated 

that caution should be taken that the development should not evolve into retail use.  

 

Councillor Andrew Maclean proposed permitting the application, welcoming the employment 

opportunities it provided. 

 

Councillor Fowles seconded the proposal. 

 

It was discussed that the agent had been cut off after three minutes, as customary for the 

Committee. Members felt they would have wanted to hear the remainder of the agent’s 

statement, specifically about the BREAM statement. Members suggested that the process 

potentially be re-evaluated, so that they could ask questions of the agent or applicant, as at 

other Local Authorities. 

 

Page 8



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

Members stated that Cirencester was a ‘net importer’ of employees, and that traffic 

implications existed. They also urged that if any issues existed as a result of the proposals, that 

residents report these to environmental health. 

 

RESOLVED: That the Planning Committee DELEGATES AUTHORITY to the Interim Head of 

Planning Services to determine this application subject to:  

 

a) the completion of a UU prior to the Decision Notice being issued, which secures a financial 

contribution sufficient to enable the local highway authority to progress and implement the 

parking restrictions described in this report, and which also secures the submission of (and the 

opportunity to determine) an RMA for the additional landscaping described in this report; b) 

agreement of a satisfactory scheme for controlling noise emitted from the development, if 

such a scheme has not already been agreed prior to the Planning Committee meeting;  

 

c) the suggested draft conditions set out in this report;  

 

d) delegated authority being given to the Interim Head of Planning Services to amend and/or 

add to the suggested draft conditions prior to the Decision Notice being issued, where such 

amendments would be legally sound and would not deviate significantly from the purpose of 

the draft conditions;  

 

e) expiry of the necessary additional public consultation exercise;  

 

f) careful consideration being given to any further representations received in response to that 

additional public consultation exercise; and  
 

g) referring the application back to the Planning Committee if any new or altered material 

considerations arise before the grant of reserved matters approval which, in the view of the 

Interim Head of Planning Services, may have the effect of altering the resolution. 

 

Voting Record 

 

 8 for, 1 against, 1 abstention, 1 Absent/did not vote 

 

For Against Abstain 

Andrew Maclean Dilys Neill Gary Selwyn 

 Daryl Corps   

David Fowles   

Ian Watson   

Julia Judd   

Mark Harris   

Michael Vann   

Ray Brassington   

 
 

 
 

 

63 23/02101/FUL - Land and Properties at Berkeley Close, South Cerney  

 

The Case Officer introduced the application, highlighting the design of the houses and 

apartments. The application was for the demolition of 56 no. existing REEMA non-traditional 

Page 9



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

residential units and 21 lock up garages, stopping up of existing highway and the erection of 84 

no. new residential units, the retention and refurbishment of 2 existing residential units. It also 

included an associated new proposed adopted highway, access drives, open space, external 

works and landscaping at Land and Properties at Berkeley Close, South Cerney 

Gloucestershire GL7 5UN.  

 

Public speakers 

An Objector, Nigel Bailey addressed the Committee, highlighting the loss of green  

space. 

 

Councillor Philip Nicholas, from South Cerney addressed the Committee, also highlighting the 

loss of green space . 

 

A representative of the applicant, Millie Nicholls, (employed by Bromford Housing) addressed 

the Committee. They explained that there would be additional housing and improved 

accommodation resulting from the proposal.  

 

The Ward Member, Councillor Layton addressed the Committee supporting the application. 

Councillor Layton explained that the application fits in with the corporate strategy of 

additional affordable housing, and explained that it was deferred to the Committee solely due 

to the areas of land shown on page 107 being owned by the Council. 

 

Member Questions 

 

Members asked what REEMA was. It was explained that this was reinforced prefabricated 
concrete housing.  

 

Members discussed biodiversity net gain, making reference to the mandatory requirement 

which had recently been introduced. The Case Officer explained that the biodiversity officer 

had no objections to the application, and that biodiversity net gain was not mandatory at the 

time the application was submitted. 

 

Members asked officers about the loss of green space, and whether the Case Officer felt that 

the development was suitable in light of this.  

 

The Case Officer stated that in their view, the improvement in the environmental credentials 

of the housing, the play areas provided and the highway crossing near the junction of 

Broadway Lane and High Street, which on balance overrode the loss of green space, but it was 

ultimately up to Members to decide for themselves. 

 

Members asked whether it would have been possible to refurbish the existing houses, which 

were not in good condition, to improve the environmental credentials. The Case Officer 

stated that two were being refurbished but that they were not privy to such discussions in 

terms of how this would be done.  

 

Members asked what would happen to the four houses that were in private ownership. The 

Case Officer explained that they would remain the same.   

 

Members asked if any agreements were in place in regard to the Council’s ownership of the 

footpaths. The Case Officer stated that the footpath only became apparent whilst the 

unilateral undertaking was being drafted. However, and tthis was not a material planning 

consideration, and would be a matter for the Council’s Assets team.  

Page 10



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

 

Members discussed the South Cerney Neighbourhood Development Plan, POLICY SC10 of 

which designated the area as a local green space, development of which would be supported 

only in specific circumstances. Officers noted that the green space allocated was believed to 

not be greatly utilised.  

 

Members asked what the tenure for affordable housing was. The Case Officer explained that 

the application was for a mix of social and shared ownership.  

 

Member Comments 

 

Councillor Andrew Maclean proposed refusing the application. Councillor Maclean 

commended the houses, stating they were great quality houses, and energy efficiency. 

However, parking concerns and the contradiction with Policy SC10 of the Neighbourhood 

Development plan led them to propose refusing it. 

 

Councillor David Fowles seconded the proposal, agreeing with Councillor Maclean’s 

statements and stating that the applicant should have done more to engage with the Town and 

Parish Council and the Objector.  

 

Some members disagreed, stating that they felt that the much improved quality of housing 

overrode these concerns.  

 

The Interim Development Management Manager  drew the committee’s attention to the lack 

of quality of the open space, and suggested that the Committee may wish to defer the item in 
order to allow the applicant to engage with community concerns.  

 

After hearing this, the proposer and seconder of the proposal both agreed that they wished to 

change their proposal to deferring the application instead.  

 

Some Members disagreed, stating that this would slow down the process.  

 

RESOLVED: That the Planning and Licensing Committee agree to defer the application for a 

period of up to 6 months to explore the possibility of green space retention. 

 

Voting Record 

 For 6, Against  4, abstention 0, 1 absent/ did not vote 

 

 

 

 

For Against Abstain 

Andrew Maclean Dilys Neill  

 Daryl Corps Gary Selwyn  

David Fowles Mark Harris  

 Ian Watson Ray Brassington  

Julia Judd   

 Michael Vann   
 

64 23/01048/FUL- Land at Grid Ref. 415682 201136, London Road, Fairford  

 

 

Page 11



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

Councillor Richard Harrison from the Town and Parish Council addressed the Committee to 

object to the application. 

 

Philip Braiden, an objector addressed the Committee. 

 

Councillor Michael Vann as the Ward Member addressed the Committee.  

 

The Case Officer outlined the application. The Application was for the Proposed demolition of 

existing buildings and the conversion of an existing building to dwelling and four new dwellings 

(Resubmission of 22/00025/FUL) at Land at Grid Reference 415682 201136 London Road 

Fairford Gloucestershire GL7 4AS 

 

Members who attended the Sites Inspection Briefing summarised it. They stated that the site 

was derelict and more suitable for residential than industrial use. Members believed that the 

site would benefit from the proposal, and that they could not see any highways issues.  

 

Member Questions 

 

Members discussed that Unit 4 of the was considered a non-designated heritage asset.   

 

Members asked what the fallback position of the proposal would be, which the Case Officer 

explained that this would be in Class B2 use. The issue of the access track was a private one 

between the applicant and the landowner, which the Council had no say in.  

 

Members stated that car parking garages existed and that if they were used there would be no 
car parking issues. 

 

Member Comments 

 

Councillor Mark Harris proposed permitting the application, explaining that they felt the 

fallback position would be detrimental to the site.  

 

Councillor Ian Watson seconded the proposal. 

 

RESOLVED: That the Planning and Licensing Committee PERMIT the application. 

 

Voting Record,  

For 10, Against  0, Abstentions 0, 1 Absent/ did not vote 

 

For Against Abstain 

 Andrew Maclean   

Daryl Corps   

David Fowles   

Dilys Neill   

Gary Selwyn   

 Ian Watson   

Julia Judd   

Mark Harris   

Michael Vann   

Ray Brassington   

 

Page 12



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

 

65 23/03336/FUL- 15 Smiths Field, Cirencester  

 

The Vice Chair took the as the Chair was the Ward Member. 
 

A supporter of the application addressed the committee. They explained that they were a 

neighbour, and that the application would provide more accommodation for a local family. 

 

The applicant addressed the Committee and explained that the purpose of extension would 

improve their quality of life due to improved accommodation. They felt that the application 

was in keeping with the area.  

 

The Officer explained the application. The application was for the erection of two storey front 

extension with single storey projection, and single storey rear extension to replace existing 

conservatory at 15 Smiths Field Cirencester Gloucestershire GL7 1XX. 

 

Councillor Ray Brassington, as the Ward ember addressed the application, raising concerns 

over the size of application and its prominent position.  

 

Member Questions 

 

Members discussed the design of the application. The Case Officer had stated in their report 

that the application was appropriate, but the Ward Member had disagreed. The Case Officer 

stated that ultimately design was subjective. As part of this, it was discussed whether the 

design code required an extension to be visually subservient to the main property. The Case 
Officer stated that subservience was one consideration but that considering the property was 

a modern property, and not in a conservation, area they considered the extension 

appropriate. 

 

The extension would result in an increased footprint of 49%, but the Case Officer explained 

that this was over two stories, with most of the increase on the ground floor, so considered it 

appropriate by them.  

 

Members stated that they believed that there was limited street scene which would be 

impacted by the proposal. 

 

Member Comments 

 

Members stated that they liked the application and were not concerned about visual impact. 

They added that the neighbour supporting the application was unusual and proved that there 

was little concern amongst local residents.  

 

Councillor Mark Harris proposed permitting the proposal. Councillor David Fowles seconded 

the proposal.  

 

RESOLVED: That the Planning and Licensing Committee PERMIT the application.  

 

Voting Record 

For 9, Against 0, Abstain 0, 2 Absent/Did not vote 

 

*Councillor Ray Brassington had left the room, so did not vote 

 

Page 13



Planning and Licensing Committee 

13/March2024 

For Against Abstain 

Councillor Andrew 

Maclean 

  

Councillor Daryl Corps   

Councillor David Fowles   

Councillor Dilys Neill   

Councillor Gary Selwyn   

Councillor Ian Watson   

Councillor Julia Judd   

Councillor Mark Harris   

Councillor Michael Vann   

 
 

66 Sites Inspection Briefing  

 

 
Planning Officers would confirm if a Sites Inspection Briefing would be required at a later date. 

 

67 Licensing Sub-Committee  

 

A Licensing Sub-Committee would take place on Wednesday 28 March with Councillors David 
Fowles, Dilys Neill, Ray Brassington. 

 

 

The Meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 5.30 pm 

 

 

Chair 

 

(END) 

Page 14



 

 

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE  

10 April 2024 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION AND DECISION (HP) 

 

• Members are asked to determine the applications in this Schedule.   

Recommendations are given at the end of each report.  Members should get in 

touch with the case officer if they wish to have any further information on any 

applications. 

 

• Applications have been considered in the light of national planning policy 

guidance, the Development Plan and any relevant non-statutory supplementary 

planning guidance. 

 

• The following legislation is of particular importance in the consideration and determination of 

the applications contained in this Schedule: 

 

 - Planning Permission:  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 requires that “where in making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is 

to be had to the development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with 

the plan unless material consideration indicates otherwise. Section 66 of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 - special regard to the desirability of 

preserving the (listed) building or its setting or any features of special architectural or 
historic interest. 

 

 - Listed Building Consent: Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas) Act 1990 - special regard to the desirability of preserving the (listed) building or its 

setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest. 

 

 - Display of Advertisements:  Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) 

(England) Regulations 2007 - powers to be exercised only in the interests of amenity, 

including any feature of historic, architectural, cultural or similar interest and public safety. 

 

• The reference to Key Policy Background in the reports is intended only to highlight the 

policies most relevant to each case.  Other policies, or other material circumstances, may 

also apply and could lead to a different decision being made to that recommended by the 

Officer. 

 

• Any responses to consultations received after this report had been printed, will be reported 

at the meeting, either in the form of lists of Additional Representations, or orally.  Late 

information might result in a change in my recommendation. 

 

• The Background Papers referred to in compiling these reports are: the application form; 

the accompanying certificates and plans and any other information provided by the 

applicant/agent; responses from bodies or persons consulted on the application; other 

representations supporting or objecting to the application. 

Page 15

Agenda Annex



 

 i 

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 10 April 2024 

INDEX TO APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION AND DECISION 

 

 

Parish 

 

Application 

 

 

Schedule  

Order No. 

 

   

Westcote The Feathered Nest Inn  

Nether Westcote  
Chipping Norton  

Gloucestershire 

OX7 6SD 

22/04163/FUL   

Full Application 

 

 

1 

Driffield Land South Of 1 - 3 Corner Houses  

Driffield  

Gloucestershire  

GL7 5QA 

24/00055/PLP   

Permission in Principle 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



Erection of eight units of overnight accommodation and associated works at The 

Feathered Nest Inn Nether Westcote Chipping Norton Gloucestershire OX7 

6SD 

 

Full Application 

22/04163/FUL 

Applicant: Mr Adam Taylor 

Agent: JPPC 

Case Officer: Martin Perks 

Ward Member(s): Councillor David Cunningham   

Committee Date: 10th April 2024 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

PERMIT    

 

 

1. Main Issues: 

 

(a) Creation of Holiday Let/Guest Accommodation 

(b) Design and Impact on the Setting of Nether Westcote Conservation Area 

(c) Impact on the Cotswolds National Landscape 

(d) Access and Parking 

(e) Impact on Protected Species 

(f) Arboricultural Impact 

(g) Other Matters 

 
2. Reasons for Referral: 

 

2.1 This application has been referred to Planning and Licensing Committee following 

consideration by the Committee Review Panel and in light of concerns raised by Cllr 

Cunningham: 

 

2.1.1 'I have discussed this matter with the Chair of the Westcote Parish Meeting, along 

with residents from the neighbouring properties. 

 

2.1.2 Although I respect your interpretation of the relevant regulations, I do feel that the 

less than definitive responses by the statutory consultees pose unanswered questions as to 

the degree of impact that this proposal may have on the surrounding area: 

 

2.1.3 The Conservation Officer in their report highlights that "...it is considered that any 

level of harm to the setting of the Conservation Area, could be no more than a low level of 

less than substantial harm...".  Whilst this is clearly at the lower end of harm, it is still a 

negative impact on a site in the Cotswold National Landscape and adjacent to the Nether 

Westcote Conservation Area. As such, Local Plan Policies EN1, 2, 10, 11 and 12 may have 

been compromised, as well as multiple paragraphs of Section 16 of the NPPF, e.g. 201, 203 

and 205 

 

2.1.4 GCCH in their submission states "...It can be argued that any additional traffic on 

narrow substandard roads will result in a reduction in highway safety...". Again, this view is an 

'on balance' justification for approval, that recognises the increase in traffic from the proposal 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



has the potential to cause problems for local users, e.g. pedestrians . Local Plan Policy INF4 

directly addresses this type of concern and this viewpoint from Highways may not meet the 

requirements of the policy.  

 

2.1.5 The Landscape Officer has summarised their opinion with, "The revised proposal is 

not likely to represent a significant level of harm to the AONB or views...". The key aspect of 

this opinion is the lack of certainty as to whether the proposal will do harm. In a site as 

sensitive as this, with visibility from far-reaching viewpoints across the Vale of Moreton and 

popular PROW through nearby villages, it is important that the LPA is comfortable with the 

fact that LP Policies, EN1, 4 and 5 have not been breached. 

 

2.1.6 Given the very high level of interest that this application has raised, and the level of 

subjectivity put forward in the comments from key Consultees, I think it is in the best interest 

of the Council as LPA, to fully interrogate the reports that feature in this recommendation. I 

would therefore request that the site is visited by the members of the Agenda Review Panel, 

in order to confirm that they are comfortable with the content and context of the submissions 

from Landscape, Highways and Conservation and whether they feel that further discussion is 

required by Members.' 

 

3.  Site Description: 

 

3.1 This application relates to an area of land falling within the grounds of a public house 

(The Feathered Nest Inn) which is located on the northern edge of the village of 

Nether Westcote. The application site measures approximately 0.15 hectares in size 

and is located approximately 20m to the north-east of the aforementioned building. 

The existing public house site extends to approximately 0.6 hectares in size and 

consists of a range of buildings, a car park and mown areas of grass.  The application 

site is mainly set to grass.  

 

3.2 The application site is bordered by land serving the public house to its west and south. 

It is bordered by a line of trees and an unsurfaced track to its east. A field containing 

an outdoor riding arena adjoins the northern boundary of the application site. The 

riding arena is located approximately 25m to the north of the application site. 

Agricultural fields are located to the north of the riding arena. The land to the north 

of the application site drops steadily in a northerly direction. The southern boundary 

of the site is located approximately 40m to the north of a single carriageway metalled 

lane, which also serves as the main entrance route to the public house. 

 

3.3 The application site slopes downwards from the south to the north. It drops 

approximately 3m across its length. The southern boundary of the application site is 

set down approximately 3m from the lane running along the southern edge of the 

Feathered Nest site. 

 

3.4 The application site is located outside Nether Westcote Conservation Area. It is 

located approximately 20-25m to the north-east of the conservation area. The existing 
buildings comprising The Feathered Nest Inn are located within the boundary of the 

conservation area.  

 

Page 18



3.5 The Feathered Nest Inn is considered to constitute a non-designated heritage asset by 

virtue of the age of the original building, its historic use and the overall character and 

appearance of the original building. 

3.6 The nearest listed building to the site is the Grade II listed Hill Farm which is located 

approximately 80m to the south-west of the proposed development. 

 

3.7 The site is located within the Cotswolds National Landscape (formerly the Cotswolds 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty). 

 

3.8 A Public Right of Way (HWE9) extends along the wooded track that lies adjacent to 

the eastern boundary of the application site. A further Public Right of Way (HWE10) 

runs in a north-south direction through a field lying to the north of the application 

site. It runs parallel with the aforementioned track and is located approximately 65m 

from the development site at its closest point. 

 

3.9 The site is located within Flood Zone 1. 

 

4.  Relevant Planning History: 

 

4.1 CD.5730 Use of orchard as a caravan site for up to 20 caravans. Refused 1976 

 

4.2 CD.5730/B Formation of a site for 20 caravans or tents. Erection of a toilet block. 

Permitted 1977 

 

4.3 CD.5730/C Change of use of land for the siting of three touring caravans. Permitted 

1981 

 

4.4 CD.5730/D (Part) variation of conditions imposed under former consents, namely 

condition (d) reference Cd.5730/B dated 6 December 1976 and condition (a) 

reference Cd.5730/C dated 19 March 1981. Permitted 1991 

 

4.5 CD.5330/J Retention of two stables and tack room, barn, stone track and outdoor 

school. Granted subject to conditions 1991. Appeal against materials condition - 

Allowed 

 

4.6 CD.5730/E Replacement of existing biodisc and extension to car park. Permitted 

1994 

 

4.7 CD.5730/F Variation of a condition for open camp site for 12 months of the year. 

Permitted 2002 

 

4.8 CD.5730/G Convert mower store to games room. Permitted 2002 

 

4.9 CD.5330/K Retention of extension of existing riding manege, tracks and erection of 

11m diameter horse walker with roof. Granted 2003 
 

4.10 CD.5330/L Change of use of part of existing garage/office building to staff 

accommodation. Permitted 2003 

 

4.11 CD.5330/M Extension of existing stable building. Granted 2003 

Page 19



4.12 06/00365/CON Demolition of existing extensions and porch. Permitted 2006 

 

4.13 06/00829/FUL Erection of single storey extensions and two storey extensions with 

conversion of existing stores; associated hard landscaping within gardens including 

enlargement of car park. Permitted 2006 

 

4.14 07/02631/FUL Retrospective application for roof mounted kitchen air intake duct 

(not visible). Permitted 2008 

 

4.15 09/02891/FUL Erection of single storey extensions, porch and storage building. 

Permitted 2009 

 

4.16 10/03186/FUL Proposed extension to existing kitchen, ancillary storage, erection of 

2m drystone wall and amendment to service track into the service yard. Permitted 

2010 

 

4.17 13/02399/FUL Retrospective application for enlargement of existing pond, 

replacement jetty and creation of landscaped mounds. Granted 2013 

 

4.18 17/04175/FUL Construction of a zero energy dwelling. Withdrawn 2017 

 

4.19 21/00506/FUL Proposed enlarged window opening and timber external fire escape 

stair. Permitted 2021 

 

5.  Planning Policies: 

 

• EN1  Built, Natural & Historic Environment 

• EN2  Design of Built & Natural Environment 

• EN4  The Wider Natural & Historic Landscape 

• EN5  Cotswolds AONB 

• EN7  Trees, Hedgerows & Woodlands 

• EN8  Bio & Geo: Features Habitats & Species 

• EN10  HE: Designated Heritage Assets 

• EN11  HE: DHA - Conservation Areas 

• EN14  Managing Flood Risk 

• EN15  Pollution & Contaminated Land 

• EC11  Tourist Accommodation 

• INF3  Sustainable Transport 

• INF4  Highway Safety 

• INF5  Parking Provision 

 

6.  Observations of Consultees: 

 

6.1 Gloucestershire County Council Highways: No objection subject to conditions 

 

6.2 Conservation Officer:  No objection subject to conditions 

 

6.3 Tree Officer: No objection subject to conditions 

 

Page 20



6.4 Biodiversity Officer: No objection subject to conditions 

 

6.5 Drainage Engineer: No objection subject to condition 

 

6.6 Landscape Officer: No objection 

 

7.  View of Town/Parish Council: 

 

7.1 Response received 20th December 2022 :  

 

7.1.1 'As Chairman to Westcote Parish Meeting I have been approached by many of 

Westcote's residents, some of whom will be writing to you themselves and some who 

have asked me to represent them. All the comments that I have received to date are 

objecting to the proposed erection of nine units of overnight guest accommodation 

next to The Feathered Nest Inn, Nether Westcote. The new dwellings would be within 

the curtilage of The Feathered Nest Inn on what is at present a lawn with sweeping 

views over the Evenlode valley below and next to a green lane, the Nether Westcote 

Bridleway HWE/9. It is within the Cotswold AONB and contiguous with the Nether 

Westcote Conservation Area. The area is approached by a single lane without passing 

places from near the county boundary and a slightly wider lane leading down from 

the grass triangle in the middle of Nether Westcote.  

 

7.1.2 The objections can be summarised as follows: 

 

1. The development would be outside of the existing line of the domestic properties on 

the north northeastern edge of Nether Westcote and would therefore set a precedent 

for other applications to build on the edge of the settlement. 

 

2. Although the design proposals state that traditional materials will be used, the design 

of the units themselves is emphatically contemporary and out of sympathy with the 

existing dwellings in this area, the oldest part of Nether Westcote, which contains six 

Grade II Listed buildings. The two-storied buildings will be very visible within the village 

and the size, scale and position of the development would have an adverse effect on 

a sensitive site, with an ancient green lane (Bridleway HWE/9) running next to it, with 

the Nether Westcote Conservation Area contiguous with the site and within the 

Cotswolds AONB. 

 

3. The units would be built on the brow of a sharp decline towards the Evenlode valley 

nearly 300 ft below. As such they would be highly visible from the settlements in the 

valley and would inevitably contribute to increased light pollution which has reduced 

the area of darkest night skies within the Cotswolds AONB by more than 40% since 

1993. 

 

4. Access to the site would be via the current entrance to The Feathered Nest car park. 

It is difficult to calculate how much extra traffic would be generated by the nine units, 
but at the very least 9 extra cars would be using the narrow lanes leading to the 

public house. This would be in addition to the extra traffic created by the four units 

at Church Farm and the house built at Wallground. Access to the bridleway next to 

the drives for all these properties is used by walkers and riders. The increased traffic 

poses a real risk, particularly to riders at the corner of the lane. I am informed that 

Page 21



there are five professional equestrian businesses using the bridleway who make a 

significant contribution to the local rural economy. Collectively they are the biggest 

local employers especially of young people and any increase in traffic poses a very 

real risk to their safety and livelihood. 

 

7.1.3 There are no public benefits that would outweigh the harm of this development and 

it is for the reasons listed above that I am asked to request that the above-numbered 

Planning Application be refused.'  

 

7.2 Response received 29th January 2023:  

 

7.2.1 We understand that our Ward Councillor, David Cunningham, has asked for 

Highways to attend a site meeting. We consider this to be helpful as only a site visit 

will show, 

 

1. The confluence of all the various drives meeting above the bridleway HWE/9 

 

2. How narrow the lane is with no passing places coming down from Halloween 

Cottage 

 

3. How narrow the lane is and how hemmed in if one turns right after leaving the 

Feathered Nest car park. 

 

7.2.2 However, of equal concern is the damage done to this sensitive site in the oldest part 

of Nether Westcote, next to the Conservation Area and in the Cotswolds AONB. In 

the words of the Conservation Officer's Report, "The proposal causes harm to the 

setting of the Conservation Area and views into and out of it" and "causes harm to 

the setting of the Inn as a non-designated heritage asset". 

 

7.2.3 As stated before, there are no public benefits that would outweigh the harm of this 

development and it is for these reasons that I am asked to request that the above-

numbered Planning Application be refused.'  

 

7.3 Response received on the 19th December 2023:  

 

7.3.1 'As Chairman to Westcote Parish Meeting I have been approached by many of 

Westcote's residents about the latest application numbered above, some of whom 

will be writing to you themselves and some who have asked me to represent them. 

All the comments that I have received to date are objecting to the proposed erection 

of eight units of overnight guest accommodation next to The Feathered Nest Inn, 

Nether Westcote. The new dwellings would be within the curtilage of The Feathered 

Nest Inn on what is at present a lawn with sweeping views over the Evenlode valley 

below and next to a green lane, the Nether Westcote Bridleway HWE/9. It is within 

the Cotswold National Landscape, formerly AONB, and contiguous with the Nether 

Westcote Conservation Area. The area is approached by a single lane without passing 
places from near the county boundary and a slightly wider lane leading down from 

the grass triangle in the middle of Nether Westcote.  

 

 

 

Page 22



7.3.2 Once again the objections can be summarised as follows: 

 

1. The development would be outside of the existing line of the domestic properties 

on the north north-eastern edge of Nether Westcote and would therefore set a 

precedent for other applications to build on the edge of the settlement. 

 

2. Although the design proposals state that traditional materials will be used, the 

design of the units themselves is emphatically contemporary and out of sympathy 

with the existing dwellings in this area, the oldest part of Nether Westcote, which 

contains six Grade II Listed buildings. The buildings would still be very visible within 

the village and the size, scale and position of the development would have an 

adverse effect on a sensitive site, with an ancient green lane (Bridleway HWE/9) 

running next to it, with the Nether Westcote Conservation Area contiguous with 

the site and within the Cotswolds National Landscape. 

 

3.  The units would be built on the brow of a sharp decline towards the Evenlode 

valley nearly 300 ft below. As such they would be highly visible from the 

settlements in the valley and would inevitably contribute to increased light 

pollution which has reduced the area of darkest night skies within the Cotswolds 

National Landscape by more than 40% since 1993. 

 

4.  Access to the site would be via the current entrance to The Feathered Nest car 

park. It is difficult to calculate how much extra traffic would be generated by the 

eight units, but at the very least 8 extra cars would be using the narrow lanes 

leading to the public house. This would be in addition to the extra traffic created 

by the three units at Church Farm Buildings and the house built at Wallground. 

Access to the bridleway next to the drives for all these properties is used by 

walkers and riders. The increased traffic poses a real risk, particularly to riders at 

the corner of the lane. I am informed that there are five professional equestrian 

businesses using the bridleway who make a significant contribution to the local 

rural economy. Collectively they are one of the biggest local employers especially 

of young people and any increase in traffic poses a very real risk to their safety 

and livelihood. 

 

7.3.3 Although the Applicant has reduced the size of the development, by one unit, and 

reduced the height of the elevations, the objections raised to the original, withdrawn, 

application have not been answered. Nether Westcote is a small hilltop settlement 

which has already been overdeveloped to the detriment of the health and well-being 

of the neighbouring parishioners and to the general appearance of the surrounding 

area. The scale of the proposed development together with the three units still under 

construction at Church Farm Buildings risk turning this corner of Nether Westcote 

into a de facto holiday park, surely inappropriate when access is so limited and within 

a rural area so deserving of protection. 

 

7.3.4 There are no public benefits that would outweigh the harm of this development and 
it is for the reasons listed above that I am asked to request that the above-numbered 

Planning Application be refused.'  

 

 

 

Page 23



8.  Other Representations: 

 

8.1 19 letters of objections, 9 letters of support and 1 general comments received to 

original plans. 22 letters of objection and 13 letters of support received to amended 

plans. 

 

8.2 Main grounds of objection to original plans were: 

 

i) The development is not in keeping with the existing buildings in the village. 

There are many old and listed structures and the development will spoil the 

aesthetics.  

 

ii) The size of the development is excessive. A substantial increase from the four 

guests rooms at present. 

 

iii) Increase in traffic.  

 

iv) The proposed development does not benefit the village.  

  

v) There will be nuisance to residents from noise and light.  

 

vi) The lanes in and around the village are mostly single lane with few passing 

places which makes it potentially hazardous for pedestrians (no footpaths) and 

equestrians with the continuous stream of heavy construction traffic.  

 

vii) Over-development of the site 

 

viii) Adverse impact on privacy and increase in noise and light pollution.  

 

ix) The building itself is of contemporary design and could in no way be considered 

as being 'sympathetic' to the surrounding old Cotswold stone buildings, many 

of which are listed. It is of 2 storeys, and would be visible from the other side 

of the Evenlode valley. 

 

x) This proposal, along with the new properties nearby, would represent a 

substantial deterioration to our AONB Dark Skies.  

 

xi) Adverse impact on conservation area and listed buildings. 

 

xii) Adverse impact on AONB 

 

8.3 Main grounds of support were:  

 

i) Importance and key role that a village pub plays for the local and wider 

community, and how important additional rooms are to make this, and other 
businesses that naturally feed off it, viable. 

 

ii) A larger offer of overnight accommodation would help to increase the amount 

of events held on the site which will help other businesses.  

 

Page 24



iii) These additional rooms will not make any significant impact on additional traffic 

in the local area, given that the business is already hosting up to 80 guests on 

a Sunday lunchtime period, and events for up to 60 guests on regular occasions. 

The rooms will simply service the demand for these guests (already attempting) 

to extend their stay and therefore, most likely reducing the amount of 

restaurant guest turnover and traffic movement. 

 

iv) A lack of quality overnight accommodation is a common issue for clients, and 

I hope that these plans will be approved to help cater for the clear and growing 

overnight demands.  

 

v) Like most village pubs, The Feathered Nest is a 'community must' which I hope 

will be enabled to adapt, in order to succeed for years to come.  

 

8.4 General comments were:  

 

i) We feel that economic activity is important for the future of the village and 

equally, that some interesting, contemporary architecture refreshes the built 

environment. However, while being very conscious of being seen as 'people in 

glasshouses' who 'should not throw stones', we would wish to see further 

consideration given to: 

 

• protecting and preserving the view by reducing the two storey elements of 

this development to a single storey 

 

• ensuring the narrow lanes, both approaching, and within the village, remain 

safe, for residents and visitors alike. Further consideration should, 

therefore, be given to the size of the development and the resultant 

increase in traffic 

 

• introducing a maximum speed limit of 20 mph through the village 

 

• restrictions on noise and light pollution to preserve the peace and 

tranquillity of the village 

 

8.5 Main grounds of objection to amended plans are:  

 

i) Height of building, being still higher than single storey at both North and South 

ends of the proposed development. Therefore, not following the natural 

contours of the existing sloped landscape, and ultimately not limiting visual 

impact of the new development against the existing AONB and adjacent 

Conservation Area.  

 

ii) Continued use of skylights that would result in upward light pollution, 

impacting those village properties closest to the proposed new development, 

and impacting the current dark sky status.  

 

iii) Although reduced from nine to eight rooms, the plans have flexible 

accommodation to the North end of the development, so remains at a 

Page 25



potential of 9 rooms -18 occupants. Confirmation also needs to be provided 

on rooms being limited to an occupancy of two. Once planning is submitted 

and approved without limitation the rooms can legally be uplifted to more than 

two person occupancy, especially for the two double story rooms.  

 

iv) The number of dwellings would still have a considerable impact on increased 

village noise, footfall, and traffic. This is noticeable now due to the increased 

stay over guests in the recently renovated cottage, and internal rooms now 

being fully booked.  

 

v) Nether Westcote is a hilltop settlement with beautiful views across the 

Evenlode Vale in the Cotswold AONB. The Feathered Nest is in the 

Conservation Area, the site of the proposed development is not but its 

proximity must be considered as affecting the Conservation Area.  

 

vi) The Feathered Nest enjoys the views across the Evenlode Vale and the view 

from the village road through the Feathered Nest grounds makes this view 

available to anyone passing through the village, which many do on foot, bike or 

horse as well as car. The views are an intrinsic part of the village and its history 

as an agricultural hilltop settlement. Many dog walkers, hikers and horse riders 

use the bridleway that runs adjacent to the proposed development. Much of 

the road through Nether Westcote is single lane with nowhere for pedestrians, 

dog walkers, hikers or horse riders to take refuge from traffic. Nether 

Westcote is already suffering from overdevelopment (Wallground 

(completed), Church Farm Buildings and The Quarry all currently under 

development). Constant HGV vehicles, in particular going to the 'Church Farm 

Buildings' site, have led to verges are being cut up constantly and it is dangerous 

to walk along the road. Further development at The Feathered Nest would 

exacerbate these problems. 

 

vii) In terms of 'economic vitality' this development will not benefit the village at 

all, only The Feathered Nest. The latest Highways Technical submitted states 

that the development will not lead to any more weddings or other events 

taking place at the pub and that the accommodation is only to benefit the 

restaurant. I would dispute this, especially as The Feathered Nest's own 

website describes it as 'a sought after Cotswolds event venue' and suggests 

people should 'host a summer wedding in the garden'. It was not that long ago 

that such an event caused noise disturbance not only in Nether Westcote but 

in Church Westcote too. It is disingenuous to expect people to accept that 

the pub would not take more wedding and outside event bookings if they were 

requested! There is nothing to stop The Feathered Nest providing catering to 

a marquee which could exceed the current 60 restaurant covers. For larger 

numbers, the parking would not be adequate and could lead to cars being left 

in the village, which really does not have any public parking space.  

 
viii) In terms of the proposed buildings, they are a considerable distance from The 

Feathered Nest and could easily be mistaken for houses - albeit well outside 

the linear boundary of the village, effectively in the fields. Although reduced in 

size from the previous application (9 down to 8), this is still a large development 

with effectively what looks like a two-storey 'house' (two units of 

Page 26



accommodation) at either end linked by four single storey units. As far as I can 

make out, the idea is to excavate a flat area for this development rather than 

following the line of the hillside and this leads to questions about the spoils 

from the site. This would create a huge amount of soil/stone from the 

excavation and, if left on site and incorporated into the landscape, would 

change it considerably.  

 

ix) The plans include a large amount of glazing (in common with other permitted 

developments in this corner of the village, currently ongoing). I cannot 

understand how large areas of glazing are even considered when the 

Cotswolds AONB is committed to retaining 'dark skies'. This development has 

patio areas, which again will lead to light pollution and outside noise when 

residents use them in the evenings.  

 

x) There would still be substantial development within the garden which in the 

past has boasted "One of the finest pub views in the Cotswolds". These 

buildings would still be visible not only from the village but from the miles of 

the Evenlode Vale below. Not a great difference from the previous plans and 

having cunningly planted a thick evergreen hedge along the view line a couple 

of years ago effectively obscuring the view and also hiding any further 

construction plans they might have in mind.  

 

xi) The proposed buildings will necessitate the removal of mature trees alongside 

the adjacent bridle path. These are nesting sites for numerous native birds 

including Long Tailed Tits and Wrens, also rare Goldcrests, our smallest native 

birds. In addition the buildings would be backing onto the bridle path and 

therefore in full view and earshot of the residents of "The Fold"just across the 

path. All routes through the village are single lane with very few passing places 

and no footpaths. Allowances have to be made for farm traffic using the bridle 

paths and lanes at all times. Hikers, dog walkers, horse and bike riders are all 

finding access increasingly hazardous. 

 

xii) The additional service vehicles, guest traffic and parking for the pub on top of 

all the other sites in Nether Westcote are gradually ruining yet another 

peaceful Cotswold village.  

 

xiii) The proposal would see a 2 storey structure, clearly visible from the road, blot 

out an extremely good view over the Evenlode Valley. It would be an eyesore 

when viewed from the adjacent bridleway that borders the proposed site. This 

bridleway is very popular with both local, and 'outside' walkers.   

 

xiv) The building itself is of contemporary design and could in no way be considered 

as being 'sympathetic' to the surrounding old Cotswold stone buildings, many 

of which are listed. It is of 2 storeys, and would be visible from the other side 

of the Evenlode valley. This proposal, along with the new properties nearby, 
would represent a substantial deterioration to our AONB Dark Skies area. 

 

xv) There would be a yet another large increase in road traffic: that accessing 

existing properties, the 'Pub' itself, and the new developments on "Church 

Farm" - all via a single width lane. The Nether Westcote 'loop' is already 

Page 27



frequently blocked by collections, heating oil deliveries, septic tank operators, 

and the ever-present courier deliveries. It would be impossible for an 

emergency services vehicle to attend an incident in this corner of the village.  

 

xvi) The Cotswold Plan states that 'developments must add to the quality of the 

area not just in the short term but over the lifetime of the development.' In 

our view this site and building design is in no way compatible with its 

surrounding location and does not reinforce the character of this historic rural 

village. Nor is it innovative in its design. The Plan also states that developments 

should be avoided if they 'restrict or obscure views to or from farmed slopes.' 

Clearly in this application the development contradicts this obligation.  

 

xvii) The Applicant's Transport Statement is headlined 'Hotel development' which 

immediately in our opinion condemns the whole project. The increase in traffic 

presently is unacceptable with the existing 31 customer parking bays with 

additional parking for the 14 staff (likely to be increased to 20.) This is a 

complete change of use from a village pub to a boutique hotel. There are no 

footpaths or streetlighting on either of the tiny roads accessing the existing 

pub making this highly hazardous for residents and others.  

 

xviii) Nether Westcote boats a number of listed buildings adding to the historic 

nature of this lovely village. The imposition of a 12/13 bedroom hotel 

converted from an integral 4 bedroom public house into this village will be 

devastating to the character of the village. 

 

xix) Adverse impact in relation to privacy, light and noise.  

 

xx) The proposed landscape plan shows that the spoils from the excavations, to 

be lost on site in a mound formation and very near to the proposed 

development, I feel this is very deceptive and not a true picture of what the 

landscape will actually end up looking like. For a start there is already a mound 

there which will have to be moved and lost on site. The excavations from the 

over site, having to dig into the bank up to the car park is about a metre, plus 

all other excavations from the ground works and installing tanks and pipe work 

etc. Look at the size of the proposed new 8 units and the spoils that are to be 

lost, there is a vast under estimated amount of spoils to be lost on site. When 

you stand on the road looking across at the views and down the valley, these 

views will be lost because of the spoils mound which will be in the way of all 

views and all you will see is the mound and the sky line, At the bottom by the 

boundary being about 1.8 meters difference from existing ground level to top 

of mound if not more.  

 

xxi) The Feather Nest Inn like a lot of the properties towards the bottom of the 

village lies on the edge of the natural spring line. This is where you get the 

Cotswold limestone brash which is free draining, it goes from this straight onto 
the clay of which water does not drain through. By excavating into the site to 

level up you may indeed alter a natural water course. 

 

xxii) Existing car park is already at capacity, especially during summer and holiday 

periods. 

Page 28



xxiii) Allowing further development on adjacent areas to the Nether Westcote 

Conservation Area, only further compounds the erosion of the character of 

this historic village, its significant natural beauty, of which ANOB and 

Conservation Status seek to preserve. 

 

8.6 Main grounds of support for amended plans are:  

 

i) I own and manage a group of holiday cottages and a 14 bedroom guest house 

in the local area. There is a huge demand for high end business and leisure 

accommodation in the Cotswolds. The CDC is already struggling for funding 

and as a result there are already cut backs on jobs and amenities. We rely 

heavily on the tourism industry which is worth £1 billion per year to the 

Cotswolds economy.  

 

ii) Village pubs thrive on the tourism trade. 

 

iii) I have lived in the neighbouring village for over two years and have never 

experienced any issues with traffic, light pollution, over-crowding. The 

Feathered Nest has a very large car park which would easily facilitate the extra 

guests.  

 

iv) I believe that this will be a great opportunity and am in full support of a local 

business providing more accommodation to help bring business and money 

into the Cotswolds. Tourism is so important for the economy of the area that 

the more opportunities we open up to different people from all walks of life 

can only be a positive. It will also provide more jobs for those in the village and 

area which again can only be a positive.  

 

v) I have spent the last ten years of my career gainfully employed at The Feathered 

Nest, gradually working my way up to my current position as the Head Chef. 

Over the years I have seen the business change and adapt in order to tackle 

the wide-ranging challenges of the hospitality market and, now more than ever, 

the need for additional guest accommodation for business survival (and our 

team's subsequent employment) is vital.  

 

vi) As a keen runner I have enjoyed, and continue to enjoy, walking and running 

safely in and around the village without fear or hinderance of traffic, be it from 

patrons of The Feathered Nest or, that of any work vehicles associated to 

neighbouring development projects over the years. For the survival of a key 

community asset and closer to home, me and my team's long-term 

employment with the business, I sincerely hope that this application is 

successfully granted.  

 

vii) I've been a resident of Nether Westcote for many years and love the hospitality 

the pub offers our young family and recognise how important local pubs are to 
a village. The design of the proposed development has been well considered 

for minimal visual impact.  

 

viii) I feel would be a great asset to the village to offer more well needed 

accommodation for tourists and friends or families of the people in the village.  

Page 29



ix) I can see from the new plans that great time and consideration has been given 

to this reduced scheme, taking on board both community & planning concerns 

while ensuring that the viability of the build (and long-term business as a whole) 

remains a key community asset and local employer.  

 

x) I see first-hand that The Feathered Nest is already catering for up to 80 or so 

guests on a busy Sunday lunchtime period without issue, while also hosting 

events for up to 60 guests on regular occasions. These new rooms will simply 

service the growing demand for these guests already seeking to extend their 

stay and therefore, reducing the amount of restaurant guest turnover and 

ultimate traffic movement.  

 

xi) I'm only too aware of how difficult it is to manage a hospitality business in 

today's climate, and it's been so painful to see (and witness) many pubs across 

the country being forced to close their doors for good. The negative impact 

that pub closures have on those it once employed and, the wider community 

to which it once served, has been truly devastating for so many across our 

sector.  

 

xii) It is clear now more than ever, that the traditional 'wet-led' pub model 

(especially in remote locations like ours) is simply no longer a feasible 

proposition. The need for additional guest rooms is essential for both business 

longevity and, to satisfy today's 'experience driven' customer.  

 

xiii) Aside from bringing in more jobs to the area, these additional rooms would 

have a very positive impact on my own personal business, affording me the 

opportunity to host group meetings et cetera.   

 

xiv) As a regular visitor to the pub (who is fortunate enough to be able to walk 

home) I have always struggled to host work colleagues there due to the limited 

number of rooms. 

 

9.  Applicant's Supporting Information: 

 

• Planning Statement 

• Design and Access Statement 

• Ecological Impact Assessment 

• Drainage Report 

• Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 

• Transport Statement 

• Tree Quality Survey, Implications Assessment & Arboricultural Method 

Statement 

 

10.  Officer's Assessment: 

 

Proposed Development  

 

10.1 This application seeks permission for the erection of  8 guest letting rooms and 

associated works. The proposed accommodation is to be occupied in connection with 

Page 30



the existing public house and will consist of 8 one bed units.  Four of the proposed 

units will be single storey in form and will include a bedspace and associated 

bathroom/WC facilities. Four of the units will incorporate first floor bedspace 

accommodation in the roofspace and a sitting area/bathroom/WC at ground floor 

level. The proposed units will take the form of serviced rather than self-contained 

accommodation. 

 

10.2 The proposed development will be linear in form and will occupy the eastern part of 

the application site. The proposed accommodation units will be incorporated into 2 

separate buildings. The principal building will consist of a row of 4 single storey units 

with a 2 storey element attached to its northern end. A further detached 2 storey 

building will be located approximately 1.8m to the south of the southern end of the 

principal building. The single storey range will measure approximately 5m in height. 

The 2 storey elements will measure approximately 6m in height. 

 

10.3 The external walls of the proposed development will be constructed in natural stone. 

The roofs will be covered in stone slates. 

 

10.4 In addition to the proposed accommodation units, the applicant is also seeking to 

refurbish an existing single storey timber clad flat roof building adjacent to the 

southern boundary of the application site as 'flexible space/accommodation.'  It is also 

proposed to re-profile an existing area of grassland lying to the front (west) of the 

proposed development to create a series of grass mounds. 

 

10.5 The proposed development will utilise the existing public house car park and site 

entrance. 

 

10.6 The size and design of the scheme have been amended during the course of the 

application following discussions with Officers. The original proposal sought 

permission for 9 letting rooms and included a number of taller and larger buildings. 

The initial scheme also extended further to the west than the current proposal. The 

changes that have been made to the scheme have reduced the height of the 

northernmost building by approximately 1.8m. The southernmost building has also 

been reduced in height by approximately 0.5m and changed from a T-shaped building 

to a simpler linear building. The number and size of openings originally proposed in 

the development has also been reduced.  

 

(a) Creation of Holiday Let Accommodation  

 

10.7 The proposed development is intended to provide additional guest accommodation 

for the existing inn. It therefore has the potential support a local business, generate 

employment and to contribute to the rural economy. The following Local Plan policy 

is considered relevant to this application: 

 

Policy EC11 Tourist Accommodation 
 

Hotels and Serviced Accommodation: 

 

1. New hotels and other serviced accommodation will only be permitted where the 

proposal: 

Page 31



 

a. is provided through the change of use of existing buildings, especially where this 

would involve the conservation of a listed or other historic building; or 

 

b. is appropriately located within Development Boundaries. 

 

2. Exceptionally, proposals for a new hotel that is directly associated on-site with a tourist 

attraction, and required to sustain the viability of the tourist attraction, will be 

acceptable. 

 

10.8 The aforementioned criteria are primarily aimed at the creation of entirely new 

hotel/service accommodation facilities, rather than development associated with an 

existing facility. It is noted that paragraph 9.11.1 of the Local Plan states that 'hotels and 

other serviced accommodation will normally be acceptable within settlements as well as 

extensions to existing facilities'. It is evident that the supporting text to the policy does 

not rule out new serviced accommodation where it represents an extension to an 

existing facility. It is noted that the Feathered Nest Inn offers guest rooms and 

therefore already offers a degree of serviced accommodation. The current proposal 

represents an extension to the existing facilities on the site and, as such, would not 

conflict with the aspirations of paragraph 9.11.1. 

 

10.9 It is considered that the creation of the additional guest accommodation is acceptable 

in principle, given that the proposal will relate to an existing business that provides 

guest accommodation and that it will be located in close proximity to the existing 

business. 

 

10.10 In addition to the above, criterion 2 of the following Local Plan policy covers the 

creation of new economic development in a rural area: 

 

Policy EC3 Proposals for All Types of Employment-Generating Uses 

 

2. Outside Development Boundaries, and outside established employment sites, proposals for 

small-scale employment development appropriate to the rural area will be permitted where 

they: 

 

a. do not entail residential use as anything other than ancillary to the business; and 

 

b. are justified by a business case, demonstrating that the business is viable; or 

 

c. facilitate the retention or growth of a local employment opportunity.  

 

10.11 The current proposal is considered to be small-scale given the modest size of the 

proposed units and the size and scale of the development as a whole. The proposed 

scheme does not entail the creation of separate residential accommodation. The 

proposed accommodation will be used for purposes ancillary to the existing business. 
The applicant's Planning Statement states ' At present the restaurant can accommodate 

approximately 60 covers, but only has 4 letting rooms. This means that there is considerable 

demand for accommodation during peak periods which cannot be met under the current 

offering.'  It goes on to state 'The intention of the proposal is to maintain the long-term 

viability of the business while at the same time, better meeting the needs of our current and 

Page 32



future guests. Reducing the seasonal and mid-week 'peaks and troughs' in demand in order 

to ensure more consistency in the business is critical. This in turn will assist in being able to 

ensure that more staff have more regular hours while at the same time, reducing the inherent 

costs in having premises and staff underutilised.'   

 

10.12 In the context of criteria b and c, the proposal relates to an established business that 

makes a positive contribution to the rural economy. The current business employs 14 

persons on a full time basis. The application form states that this will increase to 20 

persons should the development proceed. It is considered that the proposal will 

facilitate the retention or growth of a local employment opportunity. 

 

10.13 In terms of national guidance, Paragraph 88 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF) states: 

 

Planning policies and decisions should enable: 

 

a) The sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas, both 

through conversion of existing buildings and well-designed, beautiful new buildings; 

 

b) The development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural 

businesses; 

 

c) Sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments which respect the character of 

the countryside; and 

 

d) The retention and development of accessible local services and community facilities, 

such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, 

public houses and places of worship. 

 

10.14 Paragraph 89 of the NPPF states: 

 

' 'Planning policies and decisions should recognise that sites to meet local business and 

community needs in rural areas may have to be found adjacent to or beyond existing 

settlements, and in locations that are not well served by public transport. In these 

circumstances it will be important to ensure that development is sensitive to the surroundings, 

does not have an unacceptable impact on local roads and exploits any opportunities to make 

a location more sustainable (for example by improving the scope for access on foot, by cycling 

or by public transport). The use of previously developed land, and sites that are physically 

well-related to existing settlements , should be encouraged where suitable opportunities exist'. 

 

10.15 It is evident that paragraphs 88 and 89 of the NPPF offer in-principle support for 

sustainable rural development both through the conversion of existing buildings and 

the erection of new buildings. The impact of such development on the landscape, 

heritage assets, highway safety etc will be addressed in the following sections of this 

report. 
 

10.16 Overall, it is considered that the proposals accord with the aspirations of both local 

and national policy and guidance which seeks to support rural economic development. 

 

 

Page 33



(b) Design and Impact on the Setting of Nether Westcote Conservation Area  

 

10.17 The application site is located in close proximity to Nether Westcote Conservation 

Area (CA). The Feathered Nest Inn is also considered to constitute a non-designated 

heritage asset by virtue of its age, design and materials. 

 

10.18 The following Local Plan policies are considered relevant to the proposal: 

 

Local Plan Policy EN1 Built, Natural and Historic Environment states: 

 

'New development will, where appropriate, promote the protection, conservation and 

enhancement of the historic and natural environment by: 

 

a. ensuring the protection and enhancement of existing natural and historic 

environmental assets and their settings in proportion with the significance of the asset; 

 

b. contributing to the provision and enhancement of multi-functioning green 

infrastructure; 

 

c. addressing climate change, habitat loss and fragmentation through creating new 

habitats and the better management of existing habitats; 

 

d. seeking to improve air, soil and water quality where feasible; and 

 

e. ensuring design standards that complement the character of the area and the 

sustainable use of the development.'  

 

10.19 Local Plan Policy EN2 Design of the Built and Natural Environment states: 

 

'Development will be permitted which accords with the Cotswold Design Code. Proposals 

should be of design quality that respects the character and distinctive appearance of the 

locality.'  

 

10.20 Local Plan Policy EN10 Designated Heritage Assets states: 

 

1 'In considering proposals that affect a designated heritage asset or its setting, great 

weight will be given to the asset's conservation. The more important the asset, the 

greater the weight should be. 

 

2 Development proposals that sustain and enhance the character, appearance and 

significance of designated heritage assets (and their settings), and that put them to 

viable uses, consistent with their conservation, will be permitted. 

 

3 Proposals that would lead to harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset 

or its setting will not be permitted, unless a clear and convincing justification of public 
benefit can be demonstrated to outweigh that harm. Any such assessment will take 

account, in the balance of material considerations: 

 

- The importance of the asset; 

- The scale of harm; and 

Page 34



- The nature and level of the public benefit of the proposal.'  

 

10.21 Local Plan Policy EN11 Designated Heritage Assets - Conservation Areas states:  

 

'Development proposals, including demolition, that would affect Conservation Areas and their 

settings, will be permitted provided they: 

 

a. Preserve and where appropriate enhance the special character and appearance of 

the Conservation Area in terms of siting, scale, form, proportion, design, materials and 

the retention of positive features; 

 

b. Include hard and soft landscape proposals, where appropriate, that respect the 

character and appearance of the Conservation Area; 

 

c. Will not result in the loss of open spaces, including garden areas and village greens, 

which make a valuable contribution to the character and/or appearance, and/or allow 

important views into or out of the Conservation Area. 

 

d. Have regard to the relevant Conservation Area appraisal (where available); and 

 

e. do not include internally illuminated advertisement signage unless the signage does 

not have an adverse impact on the Conservation Area or its setting.' 

 

10.22 Local Plan Policy EN12 Non-Designated Heritage Assets 

 

1.  Development affecting a non-designated heritage asset will be permitted where it is 

designed sympathetically having regard to the significance of the asset, its features, 

character and setting. 

 

2.  Where possible, development will seek to enhance the character of the non-

designated heritage asset. Proposals for demolition or total loss of a non-designated 

heritage asset will be subject to a balanced assessment taking into account the 

significance of the asset and the scale of harm or loss. 

 

3.  The assessment of whether a site, feature or structure is considered to be a non-

designated heritage asset…  

 

10.23 In terms of national guidance, the following paragraphs from the NPPF are considered 

applicable to the proposal: 

 

Paragraph 203  states 'in determining planning applications, local planning authorities 

should take account of: 

 

'a) The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and 

putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 
 

b) The positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 

sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and 

c) The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 

character and distinctiveness.'  

Page 35



10.24 Paragraph 205 states 'when considering the impact of a proposed development on the 

significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's 

conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 

irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less 

than substantial harm to its significance.'  

 

10.25 Paragraph 208 states that 'where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial 

harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against 

the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.'  

 

10.26 Paragraph 209 of the NPPF states that 'the effect of an application on the significance of 

a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the application. 

In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets, a 

balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the 

significance of the heritage asset.'  

 

10.27 The proposed development will occupy the eastern part of the application site and the 

north-eastern part of the grounds of the public house. The site is set down from the 

lane to the south and is partly screened from the aforementioned location by 

vegetation. A customer car park lies between the site and the lane to the south. The 

site has a managed character and appearance which is consistent with the wider 

grounds serving the Feathered Nest Inn. The application site is partly screened by 

trees to its east and is relatively open when viewed from the Public Right of Way to 

the north. 

 

10.28 It is noted that the Feathered Nest Inn has been subject to extensive development in 

the past. Whilst the buildings fronting the lane and those lying adjacent to the car park 

entrance retain a historic character and form, the rear of the property has been 

significantly extended by the addition of various extensions. Notwithstanding this, the 

existing development is largely contained within the south-western part of the 

Feathered Nest site, with the remainder of the site appearing relatively open. Public 

views through the site to the countryside to the north of the village are available from 

the site entrance. 

 

10.29 The proposed scheme will introduce new build development onto an area of land that 

is currently undeveloped. However, the area in question is set down below both the 

level of existing buildings and the lane to the south. Existing vegetation also lies to its 

south and east.  In addition, the land in question consists of mown grass and therefore 

has a relatively manicured and managed appearance. Its character and appearance are 

considered to be consistent with the type of land often found within the grounds of a 

rural public house.  

 

10.30 The proposed development has been designed to have the appearance of a group of 

ancillary outbuildings. Following discussions with Officers, the design of the scheme 

has been simplified and reduced in size and scale so that it now appears as a subservient 
and traditional form of development. The proposed buildings have also been 

positioned further to the east and will be set down below the level of the existing 

Feathered Nest buildings. As a result, it is considered that a reasonable degree of 

separation will be achieved between new and existing development. Views through 

the site from the lane to the south will be retained. It is considered that the proposal 

Page 36



will not compete with the principal buildings on the site nor result in its 

overdevelopment.   

 

10.31 It is noted that that a grassed area to the west of the proposed buildings will be re-

profiled to create a series of grass mounds. The resultant mounds are designed to 

appear as a landscape feature within the grounds of the public house and inspired by 

landscape architect Charles Jencks. The mounds will accommodate some of the spoil 

created on the site, thereby reducing the number of vehicle movements required to 

remove such material from the site. The mounds will be grassed and will follow the 

slope of the site. A number of mounds already exist within the grounds of the public 

house and it is considered that the creation of the new mounds will not appear out of 

character with the location. Due the sloping nature of the site and their size, the 

mounds will not obstruct views through the site from the lane to the south or appear 

as obtrusive features when viewed from the wider landscape.  

 

10.32 It is considered that the proposed development will occupy a relatively discreet part 

of the site and is considered to be respectful of the existing character and appearance 

of the Feathered Nest site, the setting of the conservation area and the non-designated 

heritage status of the existing buildings. 

 

10.33 In response to the amended plans, the Conservation Officer states: 

 

' The proposed buildings have a utilitarian character of simple gabled forms, alluding to being 

ancillary buildings to the Inn or agricultural buildings at the edge of the settlement, which are 

characteristic in the village. The current proposals have reconfigured and repositioned the 

built forms into a more traditional arrangement set slightly further away from the Inn. This, 

along with the reduction in scale, simplified appearance and limited pallet of local materials 

has reinforced their ancillary character in relation to the Inn as well as providing them with 

an appearance commensurate to a small group of low-key agricultural buildings. Furthermore, 

the repositioning and lower heights of the proposed buildings, would maintain a comfortable 

gap between built forms, which would enable clear views between to the wider landscape 

beyond. The ridge lines of the proposed built forms would also be below, or in line with the 

horizon and for the relatively short length that they project into the site from the eastern 

boundary, greatly minimising their visibility from the village road. This, as well as the heights 

stepping down with the hillside and would still enable unrestricted views through the vast 

majority of the site, which in turn would maintain the connecting views between the hill-top 

settlement and its wider landscape which is considered important to the setting of the village 

Conservation Area.  

 

The openings to the proposed buildings have been reduced in size and set away from the 

elevations facing towards the wider countryside to avoid light spill into the wider landscape. 

The reduction in scale and height, and the arrangement of the forms of the proposed buildings 

and how they would step down with the topography of the site would also minimise their 

visibility when viewed from the surrounding landscape, from the lane and form the village 

road. As such it would be considered that the buildings would appear to form part of the 
settlement pattern particularly from long distance views back towards the village from the 

wider countryside.' 

 

10.34 It is considered that the design of the proposed buildings respects local character and 

distinctiveness. The position, size, scale and design of the proposals are also considered 

Page 37



to preserve the setting of the conservation area and not to have an adverse impact on 

the significance of the Feathered Nest Inn as non-designated heritage asset. The 

proposal is considered to accord with Local Plan Polices EN1, EN2, EN10, EN11 and 

EN12 and guidance in Section 16 of the NPPF. 

 

(c) Impact on the Cotswolds National Landscape  

 

10.35 The site is located within the Cotswolds National Landscape (formerly known as the 

Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)) wherein the Council, in 

performing or exercising any functions in relation to, or so as to affect, the area 'must 

seek to further the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the area of 

outstanding natural beauty.' (S85(A1) of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000). 

 

10.36 The following Local Plan policies are considered relevant to the proposal: 

 

Local Plan Policy EN4 The Wider Natural and Historic Landscape states: 

 

1. 'Development will be permitted where it does not have a significant detrimental 

impact on the natural and historic landscape (including the tranquillity of the 

countryside) of Cotswold District or neighbouring areas. 

 

2. Proposals will take account of landscape and historic landscape character, visual 

quality and local distinctiveness. They will be expected to enhance, restore and better 

manage the natural and historic landscape, and any significant landscape features 

and elements, including key views, the setting of settlements, settlement patterns and 

heritage assets.'  

 

10.37 Local Plan Policy EN5 Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) states: 

 

1. 'In determining development proposals within the AONB or its setting, the 

conservation and enhancement of the natural beauty of the landscape, its character 

and special qualities will be given great weight. 

 

2.  Major development will not be permitted within the AONB unless it satisfies the 

exceptions set out in National Policy and Guidance.'  

 

10.38 In terms of national guidance, Paragraph 180 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) states that planning policies and decisions should contribute to 

and enhance the natural and local environment by 'protecting and enhancing valued 

landscapes' and 'recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside'.  

 

10.39 Paragraph 182 of the NPPF states that 'great weight should be given to conserving and 

enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in ... Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty which have 

the highest status of protection in relation to these issues.'  

 
10.40 The application site and its surroundings are classified in the Cotswolds Conservation 

Board's Landscape Character Assessment (LCA) as falling within Landscape Character 

Area 15B Vale of Moreton Farmed Slopes. This in turn falls within Landscape 

Character Type Farmed Slopes.  The LCA identifies the 'Development, expansion and 

infilling of existing settlements'  as a Local Force for Change.  It states that the 

Page 38



'Encroachment of built development onto the Farmed slopes intruding into the landscape, 

particularly on the more prominent upper slopes' and the 'erosion of distinctive form, scale 

and character of small settlements on the Farmed Slopes including their relationship to the 

landscape and springline'  are potential landscape implications. It goes on to set out the 

following Outline Strategies and Guidelines: 

 

'Maintain to open, often highly visible and sparsely settled character of the Farmed Slopes.  

 

Avoid development that will intrude negatively into the landscape and cannot be successfully 

mitigated, for example, extensions to settlements onto the Farmed Slopes  

 

Avoid development that may restrict or obscure views to or from the Farmed Slopes.  

 

Ensure new development is carefully integrated into the rural character of the Farmed Slopes  

 

Ensure new development is proportionate and does not overwhelm the existing settlement.  

 

Ensure that new development does not adversely affect settlement character and form.' 

 

10.41 The application site occupies an edge of settlement location. Whilst the site itself has 

a managed character and appearance consistent with its use in connection with the 

Feathered Nest Inn, it is bordered to the north by open countryside. The land to the 

north of the site also slopes down steadily from the application site for several hundred 

metres. Notwithstanding this, the character and appearance of the landscape lying 

immediately to the north of the site is influenced by a riding arena. The land adjacent 

to the site does therefore have a partly developed character and appearance. 

 

10.42 A Public Right of Way extends along the track which runs alongside the eastern 

boundary of the application site. It also extends along the edge of fields lying to the 

north of the site. At present, boundary vegetation provides a good degree of screening 

of the site when viewed from the immediate east. The views that are available place 

the site against a backdrop of existing buildings within the Feathered Nest Inn site.  

With regard to views from the Public Right of Way to the north, it is noted that 

existing vegetation also provides a degree of screening of the area proposed for the 

new buildings. Whilst the northern boundary of the Feathered Nest Inn site is 

relatively open, the location proposed for the new buildings in the eastern part of the 

site means that existing vegetation running along the side of the Public Right of Way 

limits views of the area proposed for development.  A combination of distance and 

vegetation also limit public views of the site from the Public Right of Way as it runs 

through the fields further to the north of the site.  

 

10.43 The applicant has submitted and Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) with 

this application. The LVIA has assessed the site from a number of locations and states 

the following: 

 
'9.3  Landscape Effects 

 

9.3.1 The character of the landscape, whilst its principle elements of mature trees 

and grass are sympathetic to those of the AONB, is of a large domestic garden lawn, 

Page 39



the use of which for seating, eating and drinking is signalled and facilitated by the 

numerous tables and chairs. 

9.3.2  The northern elevation of the Inn, which is designed to encourage the free flow of 

customers to and from the terraces and gardens, sits imposingly overlooking the space 

at a higher level. 

 

9.3.3  Within this context, the sensitivity to this development within the site is assessed to 

be low. The overall effect is considered to be low. 

 

9.4  Visual Effects 

 

9.4.1  With regard to the five viewpoints listed, VP 1 will show little change, VP 2 and 4 are 

looking towards the development through the trees but viewed at an oblique angle, 

the effect of increasing the perceived density of the trunks, effectively restricting the 

views. VP 5 looks directly towards the northern elevation and is currently screened by 

non-woody vegetation. The landscape masterplan shows the native rich hedge 

planting along this boundary, the plant mix of which includes several species that can 

be marked for avoidance when hedge trimming is taking place, thus allowing them to 

grow into mature specimen trees. This will, typically within 10 years soften the visual 

appearance of the building. 

 

9.4.2  The closest proximity of public receptors to development is VP3. This allows walkers 

and riders to look directly into the site application area. The openness of the boundary 

will be greater after leaf drop. This view is of the Inn, which includes the illuminated 

fenestration and those choosing to eat and socialise outside In this respect, the 

building proposal, with its limited number of windows and sparsely located low 

bollards.  Additionally, the new hedge planting will typically establish within 10 years, 

thus further mitigating the view. 

 

9.4.3  The residual effects of the proposals to these views would therefore be negligible.'  

 

10.44 The case officer has viewed the site from a number of the viewpoints mentioned in 

the LVIA and concurs with the findings set out in the LVIA.  

 

10.45 It is noted that the existing buildings on the site, combined with other dwellings located 

on the northern edge of the settlement, occupy a position on the skyline. However, 

the proposed buildings will be set down below the level of existing buildings and will 

ostensibly appear single storey in form.  In addition, the amendments put forward by 

the applicant have resulted in a reduction in both the amount of glazing in the 

development and the overall size and scale of the development when viewed from the 

north. New native species hedgerow and tree planting is also proposed along the 

northern and eastern edges of the application site which will further soften the impact 

of the development. In addition, the reduction in glazing is considered to mitigate the 

impact of light pollution and the potential impact of the proposal on dark skies. As a 

consequence, it is considered that the proposed development can be accommodated 
on the site without having an adverse impact on the character or appearance of the 

Cotswolds National Landscape. 

 

10.46 It is considered that the proposed scheme accords with Local Plan Policies EN1, EN4 

and EN5 and guidance contained in Section 15 of the NPPF. 

Page 40



(d) Access and Parking  

 

10.47 The proposed development will be served by an existing vehicular access serving the 

Feathered Nest Inn. The access opens onto a single carriageway metalled lane that 

extends in a loop past the site entrance and which joins onto the main road leading 

through the village at two points. With regard to car parking, guests will utilise the 

existing car park serving the inn.  

 

10.48 This application is accompanied by a Transport Statement and a subsequent Technical 

Note (in response to questions raised by Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) 

Highways).  

 

10.49 The Technical Note states: 

 

' For the avoidance of doubt, the restaurant can presently accommodate a maximum of 60 

covers. The application does not seek permission to alter this. The provision of additional 

overnight accommodation would not therefore result in larger events occurring. The applicant 

does not expect the number of events (presently 3-4 per annum) to significantly alter.' It goes 

on to state that 'Over 90% of overnight guests stay for one or two nights and typically check 

in around 1500-1600 and check out around 1030-1100. The occupancy rate is c. 80%, with 

groups of potential guests often seeking multiple rooms that are not always available. As a 

result, groups book rooms at multiple hotels, resulting in trips between venues that would be 

reduced through the provision of additional accommodation on-site.'  

 

10.50 It is evident that a number of guests staying in the proposed accommodation will 

already be visiting the Feathered Nest Inn site for a meal or event. 

 

10.51 With regard to trip generation, the Transport Statement states that the proposed 

development (which was based on a development of 9 guest units initially proposed 

rather than the 8 units now proposed) would generate the following vehicle 

movements: 

 

' The site as a whole (including the existing and proposed sites) presents an anticipated total 

of <1 trips during the AM Peak, 7 trips in the PM peak, and 86 trips over a 12 hour period, 

which equates to 7 trips an hour. It is noted that the peak hours for this type of use are 

different to the standard, however, this TRICS result anticipate no highways impact on the 

local road network during average Peak Periods. ' 

 

10.52 It is predicted that the proposal would generate a further 5 vehicle movements over 

the stated 12 hour period. 

 

10.53 Access visibility at the site entrance is considered to be acceptable. 

 

10.54 The concerns of local residents regarding the narrowness of the local road network 

and the issues that have arisen in relation to the construction of residential 
developments to the east and south of the site are noted. Photographs have been 

submitted showing road blockages and some damage to verges/highway. Whilst it is 

acknowledged that ongoing development has caused difficulties on the local road 

network, it must also be noted that this is a temporary situation which will cease once 

the respective developments are completed. It is also proposed to add a condition to 

Page 41



this development, should permission be granted, requiring the agreement of a 

Construction Management Plan which would set out measures for the management of 

construction traffic.  

 

10.55 Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) Highways state: 

 

' The proposed development for the eight units is unlikely to be a significant generator of 

additional traffic. The single bedroom layout is likely to mean that each unit is only likely to 

be accessed by a single vehicle when they are occupied. The submitted transport statement 

predicts five additional trips per day associated with the development based on an analysis of 

the TRICS database and this does not seem to be an unreasonable assumption. The 

occupation rates of this type of unit in this location is very unlikely to be 100% and therefore 

it would not be sensible to base an assessment of the developments impact on it generating 

9 vehicles a day. 

 

This is considered not to be a significant increase over the traffic that could be generated by 

the existing business and is unlikely to have a noticeable impact on traffic accessing the site 

on the local highway network. It can be argued that any additional traffic on narrow 

substandard roads will result in a reduction in highway safety however such a small increase 

against the possible base is considered not to represent such a significant increase in the 

potential numbers of conflicts to warrant the refusal of planning permission where the 

development is supported by policy.  

 

There are concerns about the levels of car parking on the site and the potential impact of 

any parking on the highway should there be any overflow from the site. With that in mind it 

seems reasonable to require the development to make provision for any additional potential 

parking requirement. It is therefore suggested that a condition to that effect be imposed. It is 

noted that a parking survey has been submitted that shows, on the days of the survey, that 

there was some spare capacity in the car park but this cannot be relied upon should the 

business be especially busy of hosting a special event and therefore it is seen as reasonable 

to require dedicated provision.' 

 

10.56 It is considered that the level of traffic generated by the proposed development will 

not be significant and does not conflict with Paragraph 115 of the NPPF which states 

'development should only be prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road 

network would be severe'. 

 

10.57 With regard to car parking, the applicant has undertaken a parking capacity survey 

which indicates that the existing car park has 32 spaces. The parking survey recorded 

a high of 20 parked vehicles during peak  periods, indicating space is available for a 

further 12 vehicles. The proposed development is predicted to generate fewer than 

12 vehicles. Moreover, a number of the users of the accommodation would also be 

visiting the public house and would not just be visiting the accommodation in isolation. 

Notwithstanding this, the comments of GCC Highways are noted and a condition is 
proposed which will require details of parking arrangements to be approved in writing. 

 

10.58 It is considered that the proposed development can be undertaken without having an 

adverse impact on highway safety or the operation of the local highway network in 

Page 42



accordance with Local Plan Policies INF4 and INF5 and guidance in Section 9 of the 

NPPF. 

 

(e) Impact on Protected Species  

 

10.59 The application site consists primarily of closely mown amenity grassland bordered by 

a boundary hedgerow and a line of mature trees. Land to the south of the site is used 

as a car park and amenity grassland is located to its west. A grassed field and riding 

arena are located to its north. The biodiversity value of the site is therefore largely 

related to the existing boundary treatment. The current proposal will occupy the areas 

of grassland, with the boundary trees and hedgerow largely being retained. The 

exceptions will be the removal of Leylandii hedge, a multi-stemmed horse chestnut 

tree and a dying horse chestnut tree. New native species hedgerow planting and 

replacement trees are proposed as part of a new landscape scheme. It is also proposed 

to introduce bird and bat nesting/roosting features, a reptile hibernaculum and bee 

bricks into the scheme. 

 

10.60 The Council's Biodiversity Officer has assessed the application and raises no objection 

subject to conditions.  

 

10.61 It is considered that the proposed development can be undertaken without having an 

adverse impact on protected species or their habitat in accordance with Local Plan 

Policy EN8 and guidance in Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

(f) Arboricultural Impact  

 

10.62 The eastern boundary of the application site is bordered by a line of mature trees. As 

set out in the previous section of this report, the applicant proposes to retain the 

majority of the boundary trees. The exceptions will be a dying and a multi-stemmed 

horse chestnut trees. In consultation with the Council's Tree Officer, the applicant is 

proposing to introduce replacement trees on the site, including 3 cherry trees. In 

addition, the proposed development has been positioned so that it will not have an 

adverse impact on the root protection areas of retained trees. A tree protection plan 

has been submitted with the application. 

 

10.63 The Council's Tree Officer raises no objection to the application. It is considered that 

the proposed development accords with Local Plan Policy EN7. 

 

(g) Other Matters  

 

10.64 The proposed development will provide overnight guest accommodation in 

association with an existing public house. It is considered not to represent a form of 

development that will generate an unacceptable level of noise or disturbance in terms 

of its impact on nearby residents or have an adverse impact on the tranquillity of the 

National Landscape.   
 

10.65 With regard to energy efficiency and climate change, the applicant states: 

 

' The proposed new buildings will meet or exceed all of the latest energy targets and UK 

Building Regulations as well as the Net Zero Carbon Toolkit guidance for hotels. Solar 

Page 43



electricity generation will be determined following specialist input to provide the maximum 

feasible for the site / situation. 

 

- The new buildings will be highly insulated, air tight, and climate controlled with efficient 

HVAC systems. 

 

- Low E glazing will further reduce heat gain, where required. Internal blinds and curtains will 

help to minimise heat gain to suit internal comfort levels, as well as minimising light spill, and 

ensuring privacy.' 

 

10.66 It is considered that the proposed development is making reasonable steps to address 

the issue of climate change. 

 

10.67 This application is not liable for the Community Infrastructure (CIL) and there will 

be no CIL charge payable.  

 

11. Conclusion  

 

11.1 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development will support an existing rural 

business and can be undertaken without having an adverse impact on heritage assets, 

the Cotswolds National Landscape, highway safety, residential amenity, protected 

species or trees. It is therefore recommended that the application is granted 

permission. 

 

12.  Proposed Conditions:  

 

1. The development shall be started by 3 years from the date of this decision notice.  

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following drawing number(s):  

 

DR_0190-1 A, DR_0200-1 A Date 08/02/2024, DR_0200-1 A Date 08/02/2024, DR_0201-1 

A Date 08/02/2024, DR_0202-1 A Date 08/02/2024, New Proposed West Elevation A on 

drawing DR_0220-1 A Date 08/02/2024, New Proposed North Elevation B on drawing 

DR_0221-1 A Date 08/02/2024, New Proposed East Elevation C on drawingDR_0222-1 A 

Date 08/02/2024, New Proposed South Elevation D on drawing DR_0223-1 A Date 

08/02/2024, DR_260-1 A Date 08/02/2024, SD300 E.  

 

Reason: For purposes of clarity and for the avoidance of doubt, in accordance with the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

3. Prior to the construction of  any external wall of the development hereby approved, 
samples of the proposed walling and roofing materials shall be approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority and only the approved materials shall be used. 

 

Page 44



Reason:  To ensure that, in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2, the 

development will be constructed of materials of a type, colour, texture and quality that will 

be appropriate to the site and its surroundings. 

 

4. Prior to the construction of  any external wall of the development hereby approved,  

a sample panel of walling of at least one metre square in size showing the proposed stone 

colour, coursing, bonding, treatment of corners, method of pointing and mix and colour of 

mortar shall be erected on the site and subsequently approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority and the walls shall be constructed only in the same way as the approved panel. The 

panel shall be retained on site until the completion of the development. 

 

Reason:  To ensure that in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2, the 

development will be constructed of materials of a type, colour, texture and quality and in a 

manner appropriate to the site and its surroundings.  Retention of the sample panel on site 

during the work will help to ensure consistency. 

 

5. All door and window frames shall be recessed a minimum of 75mm into the external 

walls of the building and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter. 

 

Reason:  To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site and 

its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2. 

 

6. The new rooflights shall be of a design which, when installed, shall not project forward 

of the roof slope in which the rooflights are located and shall be permanently retained as such 

thereafter. 

 

Reason:  To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site and 

its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2. 

 

7. No bargeboards, exposed rafter feet or eaves fascias shall be used in the proposed 

development. 

 

Reason:  To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site and 

its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2. 

 

8. No external doors, windows and screens, rooflights, eaves, verges, head and cill 

treatments shall be installed/inserted/constructed in the development hereby approved, until 

their design and details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

The design and details shall be accompanied by drawings to a minimum scale of 1:5 with cross 

section profiles, elevations and sections.  The development shall only be carried out in 

accordance with the approved details and retained as such at all times. 

 

Reason:  To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site and 
its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2. 

 

9. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, all windows and 

external doors shall be finished in their entirety in a colour that has first been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 45



Reason:  To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site and 

its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2. 

 

10. Notwithstanding Classes C2 and C3 of the Schedule of the Town and Country 

Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987  or any other change of use permitted by any subsequent 

Order,  the accommodation hereby permitted shall not be occupied other than as 

guest/holiday accommodation in association with the property currently known as The 

Feathered Nest Inn. 

 

Reason:  The occupation of the accommodation for other purposes would potentially raise 

issues with regard to accessibility, residential amenity, parking, highway safety and heritage 

assets having regard to Local Plan Policies DS3, EN2, EN4, EN5, E10, EN11, EN15, INF4 and 

INF5. 

 

11. No construction work shall take place nor shall any plant or machinery be operated 

outside of the hours of 08.00 to 17.00 Mondays to Fridays, 09.00 to 13.00 on Saturdays and 

at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

 

Reason: In order to protect the amenity of neighbouring residents in accordance with 

Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN15. 

 

12. Prior to the commencement of development, including any works of demolition, a 

Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall:  

 

i) identify the steps and procedures that will be implemented to minimise the creation and 

impact of noise, vibration, dust or mud. 

 

ii) provide details of waste management arrangements.  

 

The plan shall cover all aspects of the works, including site set up, site preparation, 

groundwork and construction phases of the development. It shall also include measures to 

manage heavy/large goods vehicle access to the site and measures to be employed to prevent 

the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto public and any non-adopted roads. 

 

The development shall be undertaken fully in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people living in nearby 

properties in accordance with Local Plan Policy EN15. It is important that these details are 

agreed prior to the commencement of development as any on-site works could have 

implications for residential amenity and highway safety. 

 

13. Prior to the erection of any external walls of the development hereby permitted, 

details of the provision of bat roosting features, nesting opportunities for birds, reptile 

hibernaculum and bee bricks shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The details shall include technical drawing showing the type of features, 

their location within the site and their position on the elevation of the buildings together with 

a timetable for their implementation. The approved details shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved specification and programme of implementation and be retained thereafter.  

Page 46



Reason:  To provide biodiversity enhancement in accordance with paragraphs 180, 185 and 

186 of the National Planning Policy Framework (Chapter 15), Policy EN8 of the Cotswold 

District Local Plan 2011-2031 and Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 

Communities Act 2006. 

 

14. The development hereby permitted shall be undertaken fully in accordance with 

Section 4 of the consultancy report (Ecological Impact Assessment, Enzygo Environmental 

Consultants, dated 5th December 2023) and Cotswold District Council's precautionary 

method of working document. 

 

All the recommendations shall be implemented in full, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority, and thereafter permanently retained.   

 

Reason:  To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

(as amended), Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 180, 185 and 186 the National Planning Policy 

Framework, Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031 and in order for the 

Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

15. The entire landscaping scheme shall be completed by the end of the first full planting 

season (1st October to the 31st March the following year)  immediately following the first 

occupation of the development hereby permitted. 

 

Reason:  To ensure that the landscaping is carried out and to enable the planting to begin to 

become established at the earliest stage practical and thereby achieving the objective of 

Cotswold District Local Plan Policies EN2, EN4 and EN5. 

 

16. Any trees or plants shown on the approved landscaping scheme to be planted or 

retained which die, are removed, are damaged or become diseased, or grassed areas which 

become eroded or damaged, within 5 years of the completion of the approved landscaping 

scheme, shall be replaced by the end of the next planting season.  Replacement trees and 

plants shall be of the same size and species as those lost, unless the Local Planning Authority 

approves alternatives in writing. 

 

Reason:  To ensure that the planting becomes established and thereby achieves the objective 

of Cotswold District Local Plan Policies EN2, EN4 and EN5. 

 

17. Prior to the installation of external lighting for the development hereby approved, a 

Lighting Design Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 

authority. The details shall show how and where external lighting will be installed (including 

the type of lighting), so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb 

or prevent nocturnal species using their habitats. External lighting shall only be installed in 

accordance with the specifications and locations set out in the approved strategy 

 

Reason:  To protect nocturnal wildlife in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), 

Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 180, 185 and 186 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(Chapter 15), Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031 and in order for the 

Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

Page 47



18. Prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 

shall include details of the size, position and construction of the drainage scheme and results 

of soakage tests carried out at the site to demonstrate the infiltration rate. Three tests should 

be carried out for each soakage pit as per BRE 365 with the lowest infiltration rate (expressed 

in m/s) used for design. The details shall include a management plan setting out the 

maintenance of the drainage assets. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 

the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved and 

shall be maintained in accordance with the Management Plan thereafter. Development shall 

not take place until an exceedance flow routing plan for flows above the 1 in 100 year + 40% 

CC event has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason:  To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure 

flooding is not exacerbated in the locality in accordance with Local Plan Policy EN14. If the 

surface water design is not agreed before works commence, it could result in abortive works 

being carried out on site or alterations to the approved site layout being required to ensure 

flooding does not occur. 

 

19. Prior to the commencement of any works on site (including demolition and site 

clearance), the tree protection as detailed on Tree Protection Plan TR03 B  shall be installed 

in accordance with the specifications set out within the plan and BS5837:2012 'Trees in 

relation to design, demolition and construction - recommendations' and shall remain in place 

until the completion of the construction process. No part of the protection shall be removed 

or altered without prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Fires on site should be avoided if possible.  Where they are unavoidable, they should not be 

lit in a position where heat could affect foliage or branches.  The potential size of the fire and 

the wind direction should be taken into account when determining its location, and it should 

be attended at all times until safe enough to leave. Materials that would contaminate the soil 

such as cement or diesel must not be discharged with 10m of the tree stem.  Existing ground 

levels shall remain the same within the Construction Exclusion Zone and no building materials 

or surplus soil shall be stored therein. All service runs shall fall outside the Construction 

Exclusion Zone unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.    

 

Reason:  To safeguard the retained/protected tree/s in accordance with Cotswold District 

Local Plan Policy EN7.  It is important that these details are agreed prior to the 

commencement of development as works undertaken during the course of construction could 

have an adverse impact on the well-being of existing trees. 

 

20. Prior to the first use of the development hereby permitted, car parking provision shall 

be made available for guests/users of the accommodation hereby permitted in accordance 

with details first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: In order to ensure that adequate parking is provided on the site in the interests of 

highway safety and in accordance with Local Pla Policy INF5. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



Informatives: 

 

1. Please note that the proposed development set out in this application would be liable 

for a charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended), 

however, no CIL is payable as the Cotswold CIL Charging Schedule gives this type of 

development a zero rate. However, if the nature of the development were to change, you are 

advised to contact the Council to discuss the requirement for planning permission and CIL 

liability. 

 

2. The Surface Water Drainage scheme should, where possible, incorporate Sustainable 

Drainage Techniques in order to ensure compliance with: 

 

• Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 27 (1))  

 

• Code for sustainable homes - A step-change in sustainable home building practice 

 

• The local flood risk management strategy published by Gloucestershire County Council, 

as per the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 – Clause 9 (1)) 

 

• CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual 2015 

 

• The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England, produced 

by the Environment Agency in July 2020,  pursuant to paragraph 9 of Section 7 of the 

Flood and Water Management Act 2010. 

 

• Updated Planning Practice Guidance on Flood Risk and Coastal Change, published on 25th 

August 2022 by the Environment Agency - https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-

coastal-change .    

 

• Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems (March 2015) 
 

Cotswold District Council's Precautionary Method of Working document can be found here: 

https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-biodiversity/biodiversity-

specifications/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49

https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-biodiversity/biodiversity-specifications/
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-biodiversity/biodiversity-specifications/


This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Application

 

The Feathered Nest Country Inn
Nether Westcote, Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD

DWG NO.

TITLE

SCALEDATE

Alistair Downie studio, Home ground, Glebe Farm, Great Rissington, Cheltenham, Glocs, GL54 2LH
T_ +44 7973 154540 E_ studio@alistairdownie.com W_ www.alistairdownie.com
All sizes in millimetres unless otherwise stated. Do not scale this drawing. © Alistair Downie Ltd, 2022. 

PROJECT NO.
21203_

REV.

ALISTAIR DOWNIE STUDIO

08/02/2024 1:1250 @ A3

DR_010

Location Plan

-

N

1.Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.

2. This drawing may not be based on survey drawings and areas are 
therefore subject to change as part of the general design process 
and/or the obtention of a survey drawing study.

5 10 25 50m0

Legend:

Ownership boundary

Hill

Le Manoir

Tree

Pitts Farm

House

Farm

House

Carpenters Cott

Barn

Gr
ey

st
on

es

Manor

Manor

Virginia Cottage

Track

Nether

Pencross

Granary

Westcote

Walnut

Bea
u

Halloween

Church Farm

Vist
a

Field

Lodge

Crofters Barn

192.6m

The

Church Farm

Nest Inn (PH)

House

Farmhouse

Hill

Cotswolds

Buildings

Well

View

The Feathered

View

Lavender

Walnut

Hobbits

Bo
w

de
n 

Co
tta

ge

Farm

Cottage

Issues

Hill

Ridgmoor Vale

Cottage

Pitts Barn

Honeysuckle

Church

Tree

Wallground

Project site boundary

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Legend:

Project site boundary

The Feathered Nest Country Inn
Nether Westcote, Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD

DWG NO.

TITLE

SCALEDATE

Alistair Downie studio, Home ground, Glebe Farm, Great Rissington, Cheltenham, Glocs, GL54 2LH
T_ +44 7973 154540 E_ studio@alistairdownie.com W_ www.alistairdownie.com
All sizes in millimetres unless otherwise stated. Do not scale this drawing. © Alistair Downie Ltd, 2022. 

PROJECT NO.
21203_

REV.

ALISTAIR DOWNIE STUDIO
Planning Application

 

08/02/2024

DR_0190-1

Proposed Site Plan

A

1:200 @ A1 / 1:400@ A3

N

1.Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.

2. This drawing may not be based on survey drawings and areas are 
therefore subject to change as part of the general design process 
and/or the obtention of a survey drawing study.

2 4 10 20m0

Track

179.00

178.00

(174.80)
174.80

176.73

177.18

177.22

176.80

175.70

180.00

180.00

Carpenters Cott

Pencross

Church Farm

Hill

Buildings

View

Farm

Hill

Wallground

Alternative mown path 

176.34

(174.45)
174.50

176.30

Proposed landscape scheme - see additional landscape document for details

accessible access 

175.84

(174.28)
174.50

173.40

176.18
(176.79)

ramp 1:12

ramp 1:12

174.35(174.40)

(176.45)
175.55

(176.05)
175.15

(175.05)
174.75

(174.47)
174.35

(175.10)175.30

173.40

(174.95)
174.75

(175.35)
175.15

175.55
(175.75)

(174.25)
174.35

(173.60)
174.35

(174.40)
174.35

176.66

Track

(176.62)
175.55

(175.50)
175.15

(175.00)
174.75

The feathered Nest Inn 

Parking

Cycle stands

Cycle store

+ 174.80  (174.28)

Existing levelProposed or 
current level

Ownership boundary

Please see separate additional 
document for more landscape details

Landscape:

Rev. Date Description
A 07/02/24 Glazing bars removed & 

landscape amendments

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Legend:

The Feathered Nest Country Inn
Nether Westcote, Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD

DWG NO.

TITLE

SCALEDATE

Alistair Downie studio, Home ground, Glebe Farm, Great Rissington, Cheltenham, Glocs, GL54 2LH
T_ +44 7973 154540 E_ studio@alistairdownie.com W_ www.alistairdownie.com
All sizes in millimetres unless otherwise stated. Do not scale this drawing. © Alistair Downie Ltd, 2022. 

PROJECT NO.
21203_

REV.

ALISTAIR DOWNIE STUDIO
Planning Application

 

DR_0220-1

Proposed West elevation

A

1:100 @ A1 / 1:200 @ A308/02/2024

1.Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.

2. This drawing may not be based on survey drawings and areas are 
therefore subject to change as part of the general design process 
and/or the obtention of a survey drawing study.

1 2 5 10m0

178.00

(174.80)
174.80

176.73

177.18

177.22

176.80

175.70

Alternative mown path 

176.34

(174.45)
174.50

176.30

Proposed landscape scheme - see additional landscape document for details

accessible access 

175.84

(174.28)
174.50

173.40

176.18
(176.79)

ramp 1:12

ramp 1:12

174.35(174.40)

(176.45)
175.55

(176.05)
175.15

(175.05)
174.75

(174.47)
174.35

(175.10)175.30

173.40

(174.95)
174.75

(175.35)
175.15

175.55
(175.75)

(174.25)
174.35

(173.60)
174.35

(174.40)
174.35

176.66

Track

(176.62)
175.55

(175.50)
175.15

(175.00)
174.75

A

PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED WEST ELEVATION A

AOD 172.00AOD 172.00

181.60

180.35
180.60

178.70

177.90

179.95

Parking

NEW PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION A

AOD 172.00 AOD 172.00

182.40
182.26

179.40 Parking

Previously submitted scheme outline

Rev. Date Description
A 07/02/24 Glazing bars removed & 

landscape amendments

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Legend:

The Feathered Nest Country Inn
Nether Westcote, Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD

DWG NO.

TITLE

SCALEDATE

Alistair Downie studio, Home ground, Glebe Farm, Great Rissington, Cheltenham, Glocs, GL54 2LH
T_ +44 7973 154540 E_ studio@alistairdownie.com W_ www.alistairdownie.com
All sizes in millimetres unless otherwise stated. Do not scale this drawing. © Alistair Downie Ltd, 2022. 

PROJECT NO.
21203_

REV.

ALISTAIR DOWNIE STUDIO
Planning Application

 

DR_0221-1

Proposed North elevation

A

1:100 @ A1 / 1:200 @ A308/02/2024

1.Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.

2. This drawing may not be based on survey drawings and areas are 
therefore subject to change as part of the general design process 
and/or the obtention of a survey drawing study.

1 2 5 10m0

178.00

(174.80)
174.80

176.73

177.18

177.22

176.80

175.70

Alternative mown path 

176.34

(174.45)
174.50

176.30

Proposed landscape scheme - see additional landscape document for details

accessible access 

175.84

(174.28)
174.50

173.40

176.18
(176.79)

ramp 1:12

ramp 1:12

174.35(174.40)

(176.45)
175.55

(176.05)
175.15

(175.05)
174.75

(174.47)
174.35

(175.10)175.30

173.40

(174.95)
174.75

(175.35)
175.15

175.55
(175.75)

(174.25)
174.35

(173.60)
174.35

(174.40)
174.35

176.66

Track

(176.62)
175.55

(175.50)
175.15

(175.00)
174.75

B

PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED NORTH ELEVATION B

NEW PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION B

182.26

AOD 172.00 AOD 172.00

180.50

182.40

AOD 172.00

180.60

181.60

178.70

AOD 172.00

177.90

Hedge from the path along the 
site border

Previously submitted scheme outline

Rev. Date Description
A 07/02/24 Glazing bars removed & 

landscape amendments

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Legend:

The Feathered Nest Country Inn
Nether Westcote, Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD

DWG NO.

TITLE

SCALEDATE

Alistair Downie studio, Home ground, Glebe Farm, Great Rissington, Cheltenham, Glocs, GL54 2LH
T_ +44 7973 154540 E_ studio@alistairdownie.com W_ www.alistairdownie.com
All sizes in millimetres unless otherwise stated. Do not scale this drawing. © Alistair Downie Ltd, 2022. 

PROJECT NO.
21203_

REV.

ALISTAIR DOWNIE STUDIO
Planning Application

 

DR_0222-1

Proposed East elevation

A

1:100 @ A1 / 1:200 @ A308/02/2024

1.Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.

2. This drawing may not be based on survey drawings and areas are 
therefore subject to change as part of the general design process 
and/or the obtention of a survey drawing study.

1 2 5 10m0

178.00

(174.80)
174.80

176.73

177.18

177.22

176.80

175.70

Alternative mown path 

176.34

(174.45)
174.50

176.30

Proposed landscape scheme - see additional landscape document for details

accessible access 

175.84

(174.28)
174.50

173.40

176.18
(176.79)

ramp 1:12

ramp 1:12

174.35(174.40)

(176.45)
175.55

(176.05)
175.15

(175.05)
174.75

(174.47)
174.35

(175.10)175.30

173.40

(174.95)
174.75

(175.35)
175.15

175.55
(175.75)

(174.25)
174.35

(173.60)
174.35

(174.40)
174.35

176.66

Track

(176.62)
175.55

(175.50)
175.15

(175.00)
174.75

C

NEW PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION C

Previously submitted scheme outline

AOD 172.00AOD 172.00

Parking

Existing enclosure refurbished 
as flexible space/accomodation

Dashed line denotes access ramp beyond

Hedge/Trees from the path 
along the site border

PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED EAST ELEVATION C

AOD 172.00AOD 172.00

182.30 182.26

179.40

Parking

Rev. Date Description
A 07/02/24 Glazing bars removed & 

landscape amendments

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Legend:

The Feathered Nest Country Inn
Nether Westcote, Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD

DWG NO.

TITLE

SCALEDATE

Alistair Downie studio, Home ground, Glebe Farm, Great Rissington, Cheltenham, Glocs, GL54 2LH
T_ +44 7973 154540 E_ studio@alistairdownie.com W_ www.alistairdownie.com
All sizes in millimetres unless otherwise stated. Do not scale this drawing. © Alistair Downie Ltd, 2022. 

PROJECT NO.
21203_

REV.

ALISTAIR DOWNIE STUDIO
Planning Application

 

DR_0223-1

Proposed South elevation

A

1:100 @ A1 / 1:200 @ A308/02/2024

1.Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.

2. This drawing may not be based on survey drawings and areas are 
therefore subject to change as part of the general design process 
and/or the obtention of a survey drawing study.

1 2 5 10m0

178.00

(174.80)
174.80

176.73

177.18

177.22

176.80

175.70

Alternative mown path 

176.34

(174.45)
174.50

176.30

Proposed landscape scheme - see additional landscape document for details

accessible access 

175.84

(174.28)
174.50

173.40

176.18
(176.79)

ramp 1:12

ramp 1:12

174.35(174.40)

(176.45)
175.55

(176.05)
175.15

(175.05)
174.75

(174.47)
174.35

(175.10)175.30

173.40

(174.95)
174.75

(175.35)
175.15

175.55
(175.75)

(174.25)
174.35

(173.60)
174.35

(174.40)
174.35

176.66

Track

(176.62)
175.55

(175.50)
175.15

(175.00)
174.75

D

PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED SOUTH ELEVATION D

NEW PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION D

Previously submitted scheme outline

AOD 172.00AOD 172.00

Lower site landscape level beyond

Access path through site

Floor level outline of North building

181.60

178.70

180.60

177.90

AOD 172.00AOD 172.00

182.30 182.26

179.40

Rev. Date Description
A 07/02/24 Glazing bars removed & 

landscape amendments

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 63



P
age 64



Tel:  01452 42
Email: malcolm.jones@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Cotswold District Council
Trinity Road
Cirencester
Gloucestershire
GL7 1PX  

Highways Development
Management

Economy Environment and
Infrastructure

Shire Hall
Westgate Street

Gloucester
GL1 2TG

1 March 2024
Your ref: 22/04163/FUL
Ask for: Malcolm Jones

Dear Martin Perks

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
(DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE) (ENGLAND) ORDER 2015

ARTICLE 18 CONSULTATION WITH HIGHWAY AUTHORITY

PROPOSAL: Erection of eight units of overnight guest accommodation
and associated works

LOCATION: The Feathered Nest Inn Nether Westcote Chipping Norton
Gloucestershire OX7 6SD

APPLICANT: Mr Adam Taylor

Gloucestershire County Council, the Highway Authority acting in its role as Statutory
Consultee has undertaken a full assessment of this planning application. Based on
the appraisal of the development proposals the Highways Development
Management Manager on behalf of the County Council, under Article 18 of the Town
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)(England) Order, 2015
has no objection subject to conditions and financial obligations.

The justification for this decision is provided below.

The above application is for the Erection of eight units of overnight accommodation and
associated works at The Feathered Nest Inn Nether Westcote Chipping Norton

The proposed development for the eight units is unlikely to be a significant generator
of additional traffic. The single bedroom layout is likely to mean that each unit is only
likely to be accessed by a single vehicle when they are occupied. The submitted
transport statement predicts five additional trips per day associated with the
development based on an analysis of the TRICS database and this does not seem to
be an unreasonable assumption. The occupation rates of this type of unit in this
location is very unlikely to be 100% and therefore it would not be sensible to base an
assessment of the developments impact on it generating 9 vehicles a day.

Page 65



Tel:  01452 42
Email: malcolm.jones@gloucestershire.gov.uk

This is considered not to be a significant increase over the traffic that could be
generated by the existing business and is unlikely to have a noticeable impact on
traffic accessing the site on the local highway network. It can be argued that any
additional traffic on narrow substandard roads will result in a reduction in highway
safety however such a small increase against the possible base is considered not to
represent such a significant increase in the potential numbers of conflicts to warrant
the refusal of planning permission where the development is supported by policy.

There are concerns about the levels of car parking on the site and the potential
impact of any parking on the highway should there be any overflow from the site.
With that in mind it seems reasonable to require the development to make provision
for any additional potential parking requirement. It is therefore suggested that a
condition to that effect be imposed. It is noted that a parking survey has been
submitted that shows, on the days of the survey, that there was some spare capacity
in the car park but this cannot be relied upon should the business be especially busy
of hosting a special event and therefore it is seen as reasonable to require dedicated
provision.

It is therefore recommended that should the application be approved it be subject to
the following condition:

Prior to any part of the development hereby authorised being brought into beneficial
use a scheme to provide one car parking space for each unit shall be submitted to
and approved by the LPA and once approved shall be laid out, constructed, hard
surfaced and drained to a suitable outfall in accordance with those details and once
brought into use shall be maintained as such thereafter.

The Highway Authority has undertaken a robust assessment of the planning
application. Based on the analysis of the information submitted the Highway
Authority concludes that there would not be an unacceptable impact on Highway
Safety or a severe impact on congestion. There are no justifiable grounds on which
an objection could be maintained.

Yours Sincerely

Malcolm Jones
Highways Response Officer

Page 66



Permission in principle for the construction of 2 no. dwellings at Land South Of 1 - 3 

Corner Houses Driffield Gloucestershire GL7 5QA 

 

Permission in Principle 

24/00055/PLP 

Applicant: Partridge Homes (Cotswolds) Ltd 

Agent: McLoughlin Planning 

Case Officer: Andrew Moody 

Ward Member(s): Councillor Lisa Spivey   

Committee Date: 10th April 2024 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

PERMIT 

 

1. Main Issues: 

 

(a) Principle of Development 

(b) Impact upon the Character of the Area 

(c) Highways and Access 

(d) Flood Risk and Drainage 

(e) Ecology and North Meadow SAC 

 

2. Reasons for Referral: 

 

2.1 The application has been referred to the Planning and Licensing Committee at the request 

of the Ward Member, Cllr Lisa Spivey, for the following reasons: 

 

Following our emails last week, I would like to refer this to the planning panel for review. 

 

I do not think that there has been sufficient assessment of whether this site is DS3 or DS4.  

 

Driffield has no buses, no school, no shop and no other facilities so I am not satisfied that the 

criteria for DS3 sustainable development has been fully assessed and satisfied. 

 

Furthermore, if it IS considered to be DS3, then I don't see that a full assessment on the siting of 

the property has been carried out as this application seeks to put 2 houses on what is essentially 

a garden, which I did not think was in line with our current Local Plan policies. 

 

I feel strongly that this should go to planning committee for review. 

 

3.  Site Description: 

 

3.1 The site measures approximately 0.95 hectares in size and is located at the south end of 

the existing garden areas of numbers 1 to 3 Corner Houses, Driffield, that would appear 

to form part of their residential curtilage.  

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



3.2 The site is level and consists of closely mown grass together with some domestic 

outbuildings. The boundaries are defined by a mixture of shrubs and hedging with some 

parts of the boundary being fairly open. Both along the boundaries of the site and also in 

proximity to it are some mature trees none of which are covered by a Tree Preservation 

Order. To the east of the site is the residential curtilage of The Grange and to the south 

of the site is agricultural land. Access to the site is via a tarmacked public highway. 

 

3.3 The site is not within an area subject to any landscape designation, but it is within the 

Outer Zone of Influence for the North Meadow and Clattinger Farm Special Area of 

Conservation (SAC).  It is also within Flood Zone 1. 

 

4.  Relevant Planning History: 

 

4.1 17/02405/OUT: All matters reserved to erect two dwellings. Withdrawn 

 
5.  Planning Policies: 

 

• TNPPF  The National Planning Policy Framework 

• DS3  Small-scale Res Dev non-Principal Settle 

• DS4  Open Market Housing o/s Principal/non-Pr 

• EN2  Design of Built & Natural Environment 

• EN4  The Wider Natural & Historic Landscape 

• EN8  Bio & Geo: Features Habitats & Species 

• EN9  Bio & Geo: Designated Sites 

• EN14  Managing Flood Risk 

• EN15  Pollution & Contaminated Land 

• INF3  Sustainable Transport 

• INF4  Highway Safety 

• INF5  Parking Provision 

• INF7  Green Infrastructure 

• H1  Housing Mix & Tenure to meet local needs 

 

6.  Observations of Consultees: 

 
6.1 Highways Officer: Recommends refusal 

 

6.2 Drainage Engineer: No objection, site within flood zone 1 

 

6.3 Biodiversity Officer: No objection 

 

6.4 Landscape Officer: No objection provided sensitively designed and positioned within an 

appropriate landscape framework 

 

6.5 Natural England: No objection 

 

Page 68



7.  View of Town/Parish Council: 

 

7.1 Driffield Parish Council: 

 

The Parish Council objects to this PIP based on the following factors 

 

(a) highway accessibility 

(b)  size of plot/ proposed 2 properties 

(c)  environmental /biodiversity concerns of the plot clearance prior to any application 

being submitted 

 

8.  Other Representations: 

 

8.1 1 objection has been received raising the following matters: 

 

• access and parking 

• accessibility to facilities 

• impact upon trees and hedgerows 

• contamination from site clearance 

 

8.2 1 general comment has been received, raising the following issues: 

 

• no objection in principle 

• highway improvements would be required 

 

9.  Applicant's Supporting Information: 

 

• Planning Statement 

• Rural Housing Proforma 

• Location Plan 

 
10.  Officer's Assessment: 

 

Proposed Development 

 

10.1 The applicant is seeking Permission in Principle (PIP) to erect two dwellings on the 

application site, and has been submitted in accordance with the provisions of The Town 

and Country Planning (Permission in Principle) (Amendment) Order 2017. 

 

10.2 The Government's Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) sets out the matters that can be 

covered by a PIP application. It states: 

 

"What matters are within the scope of a decision on whether to grant permission in principle? 

 

Page 69



The scope of permission in principle is limited to location, land use and amount of development. 

Issues relevant to these 'in principle' matters should be considered at the permission in principle 

stage. Other matters should be considered at the technical details consent stage. In addition, local 

authorities cannot list the information they require for applications for permission in principle in 

the same way they can for applications for planning permission. 

 

Paragraph: 012 Reference ID: 58-012-20180615." 

 

10.3 If PIP is granted, the applicant will then need to submit an application for Technical Details 

Consent (TDC). The TDC will include all the detailed aspects of the scheme such as 

design, layout, access, drainage, tree protection etc. The Council has 35 days in which to 

determine a PIP application. 

 

10.4 With regard to the decision making process, the PPG states: 

 
"How must a decision on whether to grant permission in principle to a site be made? 

 

A decision on whether to grant permission in principle to a site following a valid application or by 

entering it on Part 2 of a brownfield land register must be made in accordance with relevant 

policies in the development plan unless there are material considerations, such as those in the 

National Planning Policy Framework and national guidance, which indicate otherwise. 

 

Paragraph: 011 Reference ID: 58-011-20180615." 

 

(a)   Principle of Development 

 

10.5 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that 'If regard is 

to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made 

under the planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise.' The starting point for the 

determination of an application is therefore the current development plan for the District 

which is the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031. 

 

10.6 The development strategy for the District seeks to direct new build open market 

residential development to sites within Development Boundaries (Policy DS2), or within 

Non-Principal Settlements such as villages and hamlets in the case of small scale residential 

development (Policy DS3). The Council's housing needs for the Local Plan period can be 

addressed through the provision of housing within such locations. The Council can 

demonstrate a robust supply of deliverable housing land at the present time (7.2 years) 

and as such there is no overriding need to release further land for new build open market 

housing outside such areas. It is not therefore sustainable to release further land for such 

development when the Council's needs can be met within Development Boundaries or 

Non-Principal Settlements. 

 

10.7 With regard to Policy H1, part 1 of this policy states: 
 

Page 70



All housing developments will be expected to provide a suitable mix and range of housing in terms 

of size, type and tenure to reflect local housing need and demand in both the market and 

affordable housing sectors, subject to viability. Developers will be required to comply with the 

Nationally Described Space Standard. 

 

10.8 The settlement of Driffield is considered to be a Non-Principal Settlement for the 

purposes of Policy DS3 of the Local Plan. The site is located towards the southern edge 

of the village, with the settlement being predominantly linear in character along the lane 

leading through the village. The erection of two dwellings would, therefore, be considered 

to constitute small-scale development that would accord with Policy DS3 and relevant 

guidance within the NPPF. 

 

10.9 In respect of Policy H1, the only plan provided with the application is a Location Plan, 

therefore there are no details provided with regard to the size of the dwellings proposed. 

In the event of the application being permitted, these details would be provided as part of 
a future Technical Details Consent application. 

 

(b)   Impact on the Character of the Area 

 

10.10 Policy DS3 of the Local Plan, states that: 

 

'1. In non-Principal Settlements, small-scale residential development will be permitted 

provided it: 

 

a. demonstrably supports or enhances the vitality of the local community and the 

continued availability of services and facilities locally; 

b. is of a proportionate scale and maintains and enhances sustainable patterns of 

development; 

c. complements the form and character of the settlement; and 

d. does not have an adverse cumulative impact on the settlement having regard to other 

developments permitted during the Local Plan period. 

 

2. Applicants proposing two or more residential units on sites in non-Principal Settlements 

should complete a rural housing pro-forma and submit this with the planning application.' 

 

10.11 Local Plan Policy EN4 states that development will be permitted where it does not have 

a significant detrimental impact on the natural and historic landscape, and requires that it 

takes account of landscape character, visual quality and local distinctiveness. 

 

10.12 Local Plan Policy INF7 supports development that contributes to the protection and 

enhancement of existing Green Infrastructure and that links new GI provision to the wider 

GI network.  It sets out that GI will be designed in accordance with the Cotswold Design 

Code, and the supporting text defines GI as green or blue space, including farmland, 

gardens, disused railways and canals. 

 

Page 71



10.13 When allowing for new residential development having regard to Policy DS3, the amount 

of development proposed would not be considered out of keeping with the character of 

the village, when also taking into account the nearby residential development. The land is 

within the curtilage of Nos. 1 to 3 Corner Cottages, and at present contains a number of 

outbuildings. 

 

10.14 Given this, it is considered that the proposed location, land use and amount of 

development would be acceptable having regard to requirements of Local Plan Policies 

DS3, EN4 and INF7, in addition to Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

(c)   Highways and Access 

 

10.15 Local Plan Policy INF3 relates to sustainable transport and supports development that 

actively supports travel choice, active travel, and the use of public transport, does not 

have unacceptable detrimental environmental impacts, ensures links with green 
infrastructure, incorporates facilities for secure bicycle parking and charging ultra-low 

emission vehicles, and considers the needs of people with disabilities. 

 

10.16 Local Plan Policy INF4 relates to Highway Safety and states that: 

 

"Development will be permitted that:  

 

a. is well integrated with the existing transport network within and beyond the development itself, 

avoiding severance of communities as a result of measures to accommodate increased levels of 

traffic on the highway network;  

 

b. creates safe and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists or 

pedestrians, avoids street clutter and where appropriate establishes home zones;  

 

c. provides safe and suitable access and includes designs, where appropriate, that incorporate 

low speeds;  

 

d. avoids locations where the cumulative impact of congestion or other undesirable impact on the 

transport network is likely to remain severe following mitigation; and  

 

e. has regard, where appropriate, to the Manual for Gloucestershire Streets or any guidance 

produced by the Local Highway Authority that may supersede it." 

 

10.17 NPPF Section 9 promotes sustainable transport, requires that development ensures safe 

and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users, and seeks to minimise the 

scope for conflict between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles. 

 

10.18 The access would be taken from a lane leading out of the village to the south-east 

accessing Manor Farm. The supporting statement submitted with the application notes 

the facilities within nearby villages, for example Poulton and the four Ampney villages, 
including schools, shops and pubs. 

Page 72



10.19 The proposed entrance would be on the outside of a sharp bend in the road, with good 

visibility in both directions. The proposal is therefore considered to accord with Policy 

INF3 of the Local Plan, including having regard to paragraph 83 of the NPPF which states: 

 

To promote sustainable development in rural areas, housing should be located where it will 

enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities. Planning policies should identify 

opportunities for villages to grow and thrive, especially where this will support local services. 

Where there are groups of smaller settlements, development in one village may support services 

in a village nearby. 

 

10.20 In addition the proposal accords with Policy INF4 of the Local Plan and Section 9 of the 

NPPF as a safe and suitable means of access is able to provided without materially 

impacting upon highway safety. 

 

10.21 The Highway Authority has raised an objection in respect of the location of the site not 
being considered sustainable having regard to the level of services and facilities in the 

village. These comments are noted, and they are consistent with other comments upon 

similar applications within non-principal settlements. However, having regard to Section 

38(6) of The Act, the starting point for decision making is Policy DS3 of the Local Plan, 

which Officers consider the proposal to accord with as small-scale residential 

development within a non-principal settlement, which is expressly considered to be 

acceptable in principle provided that the 4 criterion listed above are met. 

 

(d)   Flood Risk and Drainage 

 

10.22 Local Plan Policy EN14 requires that proposals should not increase the level of risk to the 

safety of occupiers of a site, the local community or the wider environment as a result of 

flooding, through the appropriate application of the sequential and exception tests, and 

the provision of site specific flood risk assessments where applicable.  It requires the 

incorporation of flood risk management and mitigation measures in the design and layout 

of development proposals that provide adequate provision for the lifetime of the 

development, and that include a Sustainable Drainage System unless this is demonstrably 

inappropriate.  This is in accordance with Section 14 of the NPPF. 

 

10.23 The application site is located within Flood Zone 1, with low risk of surface water flooding. 

It is therefore considered that the proposed location, land use, and amount of 

development would not result in increased flood risk, and the principle of the 

development therefore accords with Local Plan Policy EN14 and Section 14 of the NPPF. 

 

(e)   Ecology and North Meadow SAC 

 

10.24 Local Plan Policy EN8 seeks to protect features, habitats and species and as such supports 

proposals which would conserve and enhances biodiversity.  This policy seeks to avoid 

fragmentation or loss of habitats, in accordance with Section 15 of the NPPF.   

 

Page 73



10.25 Local Plan Policy EN9 seeks to safeguard the integrity of designated biodiversity and 

geodiversity sites at international, national and local scales.  This conforms with Section 

15 of the NPPF. 

 

10.26 The application site is within the identified Outer Zone of Influence for the North 

Meadow Special Area of Conservation (SAC).  Where residential development results in 

a net increase in occupants within the Zone of Influence are proposed, the Local Planning 

Authority is required to undertake an Appropriate Assessment under the Habitats 

Regulations. As such, a net increase in occupants is considered to contribute to an impact 

on site integrity due to increased recreational pressure in combination with other 

development in the surrounding area. 

 

10.27 The applicant has made the necessary financial contribution, such that the proposal 

accords with the requirements of relevant legislation and the requirements of Local Plan 

Policy EN9 and Section 15 of the NPPF. Confirmation has been received from Natural 
England that they have no objection to the proposal subject to the HRA process being 

completed. 

 

11.  Conclusion:   

 

11.1 Overall, it is considered that the proposal would accord with Policies DS3, EN4, EN14, 

INF3, INF4 and INF7 of the Local Plan.  

 

11.2 Therefore, the location, land use and amount of development are considered acceptable 

in principle and as such, the permission is principle is recommended for approval. 

 

 

Page 74



3 Corner Houses
Cirencester,
Driffield,
Gloucestershire
GL7 sQA

3 Corner Houses, GL7 sQA

05r01520253035404550ut tlllltrrlt

OS MasterMap 1 250/2500/1 0000 scale
Wednesday, October 1 2, 2022, I D: M Ptvl BL-O 1 0661 30
www.planningapplicationmaps.co.uk

1:1 250 scale print at A4, Centre: 407192 E, 1 99494 N

LCCA-tr]ON FLAN SCATI I:IZ5O

t{
J

l

!
N
l

,g95oo. ,s95oo.

rs94oo. ',s9400.

o
!
J

3

{
N

Cotswold

Medlars Manor Farm
Barn

100.8m

Ashton House

Juniper
Cottage

D

+

Old Post
Office

The Grange

@Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey. Licence no. 100051661 ffiJ ffinr"ei$,t0n,.,

N

+

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	 Schedule of Applications
	8 22/04163/FUL- The Feathered Nest Inn, Nether Westcote, Chipping Norton, Gloucestershire, OX7 6SD
	1 - 22-04163-FUL - Location Plan
	2 - 22-04163-FUL - Proposed Site Plan
	3 - 22-04163-FUL - Proposed West Elevation
	4 - 22-04163-FUL - Proposed North Elevation
	5 - 22-04163-FUL - Proposed East Elevation
	6 - 22-04163-FUL - Proposed South Elevation
	7 - 22-04163-FUL - Photographs
	8 - 22-04163-FUL - GCC Highways Response

	9 24/00055/PLP- Land South Of 1 - 3 Corner Houses, Driffield, Gloucestershire, GL7 5QA
	1 - 24-00055-PLP - Site Location Plan
	2 - 24-00055-PLP - Photographs


